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Ranking as one of Japan’s leading chemical companies,
Showa Denko K.K. operates in the five major sectors of
petrochemicals, chemicals, electronics, inorganic materi-
als, and aluminum.

Showa Denko and its Group companies have been carrying
out a six-year consolidated business plan that extends
from 2000 through 2005. Under the first three-year portion
of the plan, the “Cheetah Project,” we improved our financial
strength by reducing interest-bearing debt and strengthened
our earning power by curtailing or withdrawing from
unprofitable operations.

We have now launched the “Sprout Project,” covering the
2003-2005 period, under which the focus has been shifted
from restructuring to expansion in strategically selected
market areas with high growth potential. Through nurturing
the interconnections of inorganic/aluminum and organic
chemical technologies, we will provide even more individu-
alized, high-value products for the growing markets of
electronics, automotive parts, and personal care/environmen-
tal goods. By doing so, we are fulfilling our aim of becom-
ing a truly “focused and individualized chemical company.” 

Showa Denko is committed to the principle of Responsible
Care and is vigorously carrying out an action plan to imple-
ment its Responsible Care program.

We at Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies will
provide products and services that are useful and safe
and exceed our customers’ expectations, thereby enhanc-
ing the value of the Group, giving satisfaction to our share-
holders, and contributing to the sound growth of society
on a global scale.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements relating to management’s projections of future profits, the possible achievement of the Company’s financial goals and objectives, and

management’s expectations for the Company’s product development program. The Company cannot guarantee that these expectations and projections will be realized or

correct. Actual results may differ materially from the results anticipated in the statements included herein due to a variety of factors, including such economic factors as fluc-

tuations in foreign currency exchange rates as well as market supply and demand conditions. The timely commercialization of products under development by the Company

may be disrupted or delayed by a variety of factors, including market acceptance, the introduction of new products by competitors, and changes in regulations or laws. The

foregoing list of factors is not inclusive.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note)

2003 2002 2001 2003

For the year
Net sales .................................................................. ¥689,366 ¥674,018 ¥0,708,900 $6,434,855
Operating income ..................................................... 38,546 31,303 19,169 359,808
Net income (loss) ...................................................... 10,317 13,024 (34,260) 96,299
Depreciation and amortization................................... 34,543 36,956 38,893 322,440

At year-end
Total assets .............................................................. 939,879 986,544 1,030,872 8,773,254
Total stockholders’ equity ......................................... 166,087 150,121 139,458 1,550,334

Yen U.S. dollars (Note)

Per share
Net income (loss) ...................................................... ¥009.07 ¥011.44 ¥ (30.78) $0.085
Stockholders’ equity ................................................. 145.96 131.92 122.54 1.36
Cash dividends (applicable to the period) .................. 2.00 — — 0.019

Number of employees at year-end .......................... 10,623 10,933 11,970
Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥107.13 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange 

at December 31, 2003.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
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focused manner in accordance with the clear

business portfolio defined in the new business

plan, thereby accelerating the speed of growth.

We are also working to improve our business

structure to strengthen earning power. Specifically,

we made notable progress in 2003 in our hard

disk (HD) and petrochemicals operations by imple-

menting various restructuring measures. Further-

more, we optimized the production setup of

aluminum extrusions and rolled products, sub-

stantially strengthening our cost-competitiveness.

Achievements in 2003

The Japanese chemical industry continued to

face a severe business environment due to the

overall decline in selling prices caused by deflation

and the rise in raw material costs. Nevertheless,

Showa Denko’s consolidated net sales in 2003

increased 2.3%, to ¥689,366 million, and operat-

ing income was up 23.1%, to ¥38,546 million, as

all business segments, except Aluminum, recorded

increases in profits. The main contributing factors

were higher petrochemicals shipment volumes, a

substantial increase in the sales volumes of HDs,

and cost reductions in all segments. Net income

fell 20.8%, to ¥10,317 million (¥9.07 per share),

however, as there was an extraordinary gain on

the sale of securities in the previous term. Dividends

of ¥2.00 per share were paid to shareholders on

record at the end of December 2003. 

Our capital expenditures in 2003 totaled

¥40,848 million, including the installation of facili-

ties for producing ammonia through the gasifica-

tion of waste plastics and the expansion of

compound semiconductor production facilities.

We also worked hard to increase operating

income and cut inventories as a means to reduce

debt and improve our financial strength. As a

result, the outstanding balance of interest-bearing

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT
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In 2003, Showa Denko K.K. launched its

three-year consolidated business plan

called the “Sprout Project.” The plan corre-

sponds to the latter half of the six-year period

(2000-2005) in which we are transforming our-

selves from a diversified chemical company into a

focused, individualized chemical company. The

growth-oriented Sprout Project is based on the

achievements we made under the preceding

“Cheetah Project,” which focused on the renova-

tion of operations through restructuring.

Under the Sprout Project, we are developing

and expanding businesses in selected high-

growth markets by fully utilizing the technical

strengths created by the interconnections of our

core inorganic/aluminum and organic chemical

technologies. In our development efforts, we are

viewing things from a customer standpoint to

provide individualized new products that fully

satisfy our customers. At the same time, we

are allocating resources in an efficient and

Sprout Project: Strategic Business Expansion
Showa Denko’s Basic Strategy

 “Individualized chemical company”  
with  improved earning power

Medium-to-long-term strategy

Continuous cost reductions

Continuation 
and fortification of 
base businesses

Rehabilitation 
or disposal of 

“businesses that need 
restructuring”

Expansion 
of strategic 

growth  
businesses

Strategic Market Unit (SMU) Strategy

Six-Year Consolidated Business Plan

Realizing our vision
Customer/shareholder 
satisfaction

Contributing to society 
on a global scale

Establishing ourselves as an individualized Es
chemical company2000

2001

2002

2004

2005

2003

Growth strategy 
through the Sprout Project

Transformation from a diversified chemical company 
into a focused and individualized chemical company

Strategic reduction in scale
through the Cheetah Project
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debt as of the end of 2003 decreased ¥53.7 bil-

lion, to ¥527.4 billion.

Segment Performances

In terms of net sales for the year, the Petrochemicals

segment contributed 34.1%, Chemicals 11.3%,

Electronics 13.7%, Inorganic Materials 7.4%, and

Aluminum 33.4%. While net sales increased 2.3%

from the preceding year, to ¥689,366 million,

operating income jumped 23.1%, to ¥38,546

million. A breakdown of net sales and operating

income by segment is as follows:

In the Petrochemicals segment, sales rose

3.2%, to ¥235,124 million, and operating income

increased 20.3%, to ¥11,971 million, due mainly

to a rise in olefin shipment volumes. Sales from

organic chemicals operations decreased as a

result of the transfer of the acrylonitrile business

to the Chemicals segment. Sales of plastics also

fell as the polyethylene business of Japan

Polyolefins Co., Ltd., was merged with that of

Mitsubishi Chemical Corporation Group in

September 2003, and the newly established

company became one of our affiliates to which

the equity method was applied.

In the Chemicals segment, sales were up

14.2%, to ¥78,232 million, and operating income

increased 5.5%, to ¥5,989 million. Sales from

gases & chemicals operations rose owing to

increases in shipment volumes of industrial gases

and the transfer of the acrylonitrile business.

Sales from specialty chemicals operations grew

with the increase in the shipment volumes of

Shodex analytical columns, the start of the sales

of new pharmaceutical/agrochemical intermedi-

ates, and the full-year contribution of the polychloro-

prene rubber business, which was consolidated in

the latter half of 2002. These factors more than

offset the decline in the selling prices of vitamin C

derivatives for feed applications. SDS Biotech

K.K.’s agrochemical business saw a slight decline

in sales due to the effect of a stronger yen.

In the Electronics segment, sales rose 25.9%,

to ¥94,735 million. Operating income jumped

72.9%, to ¥10,700 million, mainly due to increas-

es in the shipment volumes of HDs, which result-

ed from expanded sales following the start-up of

new production facilities in Singapore. Sales of

specialty gases for semiconductor processing also

increased due to higher shipment volumes.

However, sales of rare earth magnetic alloys fell

slightly, reflecting lower selling prices and ship-

ment volumes. Sales of compound semiconduc-

tors were maintained at almost the same level as

in the previous year.

In the Inorganic Materials segment, sales fell

10.4%, to ¥50,969 million, mainly as a result of

our withdrawal from ferrochrome production in

Japan. However, operating income surged

93.9%, to ¥2,654 million, due to cost reductions.

Sales from ceramics operations were maintained

at the previous year’s level, as were graphite

Mitsuo Ohashi, President and CEO



Professor Morinobu Endo of
Shinshu University (left) and 
Showa Denko’s president, 
Mitsuo Ohashi

HDs and a hard disk drive (HDD)
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electrode sales in Japan. U.S. subsidiary Showa

Denko Carbon Inc.’s sales of graphite electrodes fell

slightly due to the effect of the yen’s appreciation.

In the Aluminum segment, sales were down

6.2%, to ¥230,306 million, and operating income

was down 9.7%, to ¥11,647 million. Sales from

ingot marketing and rolled product operations

rose slightly. Sales of Shotic forged aluminum

products increased due to a rise in shipment vol-

umes for car air-conditioner applications. Sales of

aluminum cylinders for use in laser beam printers

also increased. Meanwhile, sales of extrusions fell

due to a decrease in demand from the construc-

tion industry. Sales of heat exchangers were down

as a result of a fall in shipments to car manufactur-

ers in Japan. Sales of aluminum cans, influenced

by increased taxes on low-malt beer and an

unusually cool summer, decreased slightly.

Developing Strategic Growth Businesses
through the SMU Approach

Under the Sprout Project, we are focusing on

developing strategic growth businesses through

the strategic market unit (SMU) approach. After

careful market analysis, we have identified 12

SMUs—market segments in which we can

expect high growth by nurturing the interconnec-

tions of our proprietary inorganic/aluminum and

organic chemical technologies. The following are

some examples of our achievements in the first

year of the Sprout Project:

In the SMU project for communications devices,

we developed a four-element light-emitting diode

(LED) with exceptional brightness. The new

product, which emits bright light in the wavelengths

from red to yellow-green, is expected to find

applications in automotive devices, outdoor dis-

plays, mobile phones, and traffic lights. In regard

to our battery materials SMU project, demand for

our vapor-grown carbon fiber (VGCF) is increas-

ing as it extends the life of the lithium ion batter-

ies used in PCs and mobile phones. We

established MEFS Co., Ltd., a joint venture with

Professor Morinobu Endo of Shinshu University,

to develop new applications for advanced carbon

materials, including VGCF. In the semiconductor

processing materials SMU project, we have

become the first Japanese company to start

commercial production of C4F6, an advanced dry

etching gas that enables semiconductor process-

ing at line widths as narrow as 90nm. Showa

Denko is facilitating the development of strategic

growth businesses by allocating about half of its

R&D budget to SMU-related projects.

Expanding the HD Business

Having acquired the Mitsubishi Chemical

Corporation Group’s HD business in Singapore,

we commenced its operations as Showa Denko

HD Singapore Pte. Ltd. in January 2003. To meet

increasing demand, we expanded the production

capacity at SHDS by one million disks a month

as from October 2003. Furthermore, we formed

an alliance with Trace Storage Technology Corp.

of Taiwan whereby we provide our HD technolo-

gy to Trace and gain the right to purchase HDs

produced by Trace on a preferential basis. As a

result of the expansion in Singapore and the

alliance with Trace, Showa Denko has estab-

lished itself as one of the world’s leading inde-

pendent HD suppliers, with the capacity to

provide up to 8.3 million HDs a month. We aim to

further increase our supply capacity to more than

10 million HDs a month and develop HDs of still-

higher quality.

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT
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Restructuring and Strengthening the
Petrochemicals Business

The polyethylene business of our consolidated

subsidiary Japan Polyolefins was merged with

that of Japan Polychem Corporation, a member

of the Mitsubishi Chemical Corporation Group, in

September 2003. In cooperation with other

shareholders in the new company, Japan

Polyethylene Corporation, we will work hard to

achieve synergies as quickly as possible and

strengthen its presence in the plastics market. 

In the area of organic chemicals operations,

we established Japan Ethyl Acetate Co., Ltd., a

joint venture with Kyowa Hakko Kogyo Co., Ltd.,

to meet the growing demand for ethyl acetate in

Asia. The new company is scheduled to start oper-

ating its 100,000-ton-a-year ethyl acetate plant in

the Oita Petrochemical Complex in April 2004.

Promoting Responsible Care Activities and
Strengthening Corporate Governance

We are committed to the principles of

Responsible Care, which means that we are

working to ensure the safety and health of our

employees and of people everywhere as well as

to protect the environment from harm caused by

chemical substances throughout such substances’

entire life cycles, namely, the development, pro-

duction, distribution, use, final consumption, and

disposal of these substances. 

As part of our efforts to contribute to the

prevention of global warming and protect natu-

ral resources, we reduced our rate of energy

consumption by basic energy unit in 2002 to

82% of the 1990 figure. Furthermore, approxi-

mately 20% of our total electricity requirements

are met by our hydroelectric power plants, a

clean source of energy.

As of the end of 2003, all Showa Denko K.K.

sites and 17 of its subsidiaries and affiliates were

certified under the ISO 14001 international stan-

dard for environmental management systems.

We attach great importance to corporate

governance as a means to ensure sustainable

growth and long-term corporate value and have

established a Corporate Ethics Committee to

strengthen compliance with laws and regula-

tions and to achieve higher levels in this area.

We will do our utmost to strengthen competi-

tiveness and improve earning power by acceler-

ating the expansion of strategic growth businesses

and further curtailing costs in anticipation of con-

tinued deflation in Japan. 

Showa Denko promises to establish itself as a

focused and individualized chemical company by

carrying out the Sprout Project. By doing so, we

will enhance our corporate value, give satisfaction

to our shareholders, meet customers’ expectations,

and contribute to the sound growth of society on

a global scale.

Management is looking forward to your contin-

ued support.

March 30, 2004

Mitsuo Ohashi, President and CEO

High-density polyethylene plant
(Japan Polyethylene Corporation)
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PPROGRESS MADE IN THE FIRST YEAR OF THE “SPROUT PROJECT”

Showa Denko and its Group companies
have been carrying out a six-year consolidated
business plan that extends from 2000 through
2005. Following the successful completion
of the “Cheetah Project,” which focused on
restructuring, we launched the “Sprout
Project” at the beginning of 2003. Under this
newest project, which covers the remaining
three-year period, we aim to establish our-
selves as a “focused and individualized
chemical company” by nurturing and
expanding strategic growth businesses.

Basic Strategy
IDENTIFICATION OF 12 SMUs IN 
THREE MAJOR MARKETS
Through the interconnection of inorganic/aluminum and
organic chemical technologies, we will provide even more
individualized products that meet customer requirements
in the three major target markets of electronics, automo-
tive parts, and personal care/environmental goods. 

Specifically, after detailed market analyses, we have
identified 12 strategic market units (SMUs)—market seg-
ments in which we can expect to achieve high growth by
fully utilizing our core technologies—and have begun imple-
menting 12 projects based on these SMUs. Independent
of conventional organization, these projects are directly
reported to the CEO. 

In addition, we have established 27 technology plat-
forms (TPFs) to support these SMU projects, accelerate
development, and further cultivate core technologies.
Engineers assigned to the TPFs are prepared to solve var-
ious technical problems pertaining to the SMU projects.

Portfolio Management
We have classified all our businesses into three categories,
namely, strategic growth businesses, base businesses,
and businesses that need restructuring. 

In strategic growth businesses, we will accelerate
growth through the SMU approach and preferential alloca-
tion of resources. 

In base businesses, which support the strategic growth
businesses, we will improve profitability by maintaining
and strengthening competitiveness. 

Regarding the businesses that need restructuring, we
will try to rehabilitate these businesses through changes in
business models. In some cases, we will make decisions
on whether we should curtail or withdraw from operations.
Through these measures, we will establish ourselves as
an “individualized chemical company” and achieve high
profitability.

Major Accomplishments
In 2003, Showa Denko achieved an operating income of
¥38.5 billion, surpassing the target for the first year of the
Sprout Project. We have made the following progress in
implementing the project:

1. Improvement in our earning power
(1) Higher sales profit ratio 
As a result of the drastic restructuring of unprofitable
operations under the Cheetah Project and concentration
of resources on high-value businesses, the ratio of operat-
ing income to net sales increased 1.0 percentage point
from the previous year, to 5.6%. In 2005, the last year of
the Sprout Project, we intend to further improve this figure,
to 7.5%.

(2) Cost reductions
In addition to the cost reductions of around ¥40 billion
achieved during the three years of the Cheetah Project,
we will be reducing costs by a total of ¥20 billion during
the three years of the Sprout Project. In 2003, we
achieved cost reductions of ¥10.5 billion.

(3) Expansion and strengthening of strategic growth 
businesses

In 2003, we made the following announcements concern-
ing major achievements, mainly in the field of electronics:

• Developed a four-element LED with the highest level
of brightness in the world

• Established MEFS Co., Ltd., a joint venture with
Professor Morinobu Endo of Shinshu University, to
conduct research on advanced carbon materials,
including carbon nanofibers

• Became the first Japanese company to start the
commercial production of C4F6, an advanced dry
etching gas that enables semiconductor processing
at extremely narrow line widths

• Decided to install a second production line for solid
conductive polymer aluminum capacitors

• Expanded the production capacity for ceria-based
chemical mechanical polishing (CMP) slurries

• Started sample shipments of titanium oxide paste 
(SP-X) for use in electrodes of dye-sensitized solar cells

2. Improvement in our consolidated balance sheet
Reduction of debt 
We are in the process of achieving our goal of reducing
interest-bearing debt to ¥520 billion or less by the end of
2005. The interest-bearing debt at the end of 2003 was
¥527.4 billion, representing a decrease of ¥53.7 billion, or
9.2%, from the previous year-end. We are also aiming to
improve the debt/equity ratio to 2.8 times by 2005.

2005 (Sprout 
2002 2003 Project targets)

Operating income/
net sales ratio 4.6% 5.6% 7.5%

ROA (operating income 
basis) 3.1% 4.1% 5.1%

Interest-bearing debt ¥581.1 billion ¥527.4 billion ¥520.0 billion

Debt/equity ratio 3.8 times 3.2 times 2.8 timesPatterns of dry etching with C4F6 at line widths as narrow as 90nm
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3. Segment strategies under the Sprout Project
(1) Petrochemicals
With the enhancement of olefin production efficiency and
successful completion of alliances in the areas of plastics
and organic chemicals, we will further reduce costs in this
segment by ¥5 billion by 2005 to improve profitability.

(2) Chemicals
In specialty chemicals, we will develop high-value product
lines and launch new products to expand the strategic
growth businesses. In base chemicals, one of the 
base businesses, we will maintain and increase cost-
competitiveness to secure a stable source of profit. As
part of this move, we are adopting new feedstock for
ammonia production.

(3) Electronics
Since this segment represents the most important growth
engine for Showa Denko, we will concentrate our resources
in this segment to accelerate R&D efforts and expand
business.

(4) Inorganic materials
Regarding commodity ceramic products, we will gradually
shift production overseas, including to China, to strength-
en our cost-competitiveness. In the area of graphite elec-
trodes, we will continue to make cost reductions at our
production sites in Japan and the United States to
strengthen our earning power.

(5) Aluminum
We will accelerate the growth of high-value product lines
through the enhanced allocation of resources. For com-
modity rolled products and extrusions (both classified as
businesses that need restructuring), we will review the
present production setup to reduce costs and improve
profitability. 

4. Accelerated advancement into the Chinese market
In addition to the two subsidiaries in China supporting the
Group’s activities in that country, to either increase our
own cost-competitiveness or to support customers’ local
production, we have established production bases for the
following items:

Semiconductor-processing specialty gas and 
scrubbers for resulting waste gases: Shanghai

Unsaturated polyester resin compounds: Shanghai
Rare earth magnetic alloys: Baotou
Aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers: Dalian
Ceramic abrasive grains: Lianyungang

5. Introduction of a new personnel system
We introduced a new personnel system in January 2004
whereby the set annual pay raise system has been abol-
ished and each employee is rewarded according to
his/her job accountability and performance.

Showa Denko is committed to fully implementing the
strategies under the Sprout Project, thereby realizing its
vision and enhancing corporate value.

1999 2000 2001 2002 2004 
(fore- 
cast)

2003 2005 
Sprout 
Project 
target

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 
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Project 
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Electronics

Automotive Parts Personal Care/  
Environmental Goods

Communications  
devices

Displays and  
their materials

Capacitors and  
their materials

Semiconductor processing materials

Battery materials

Heat exchangers

Parts/components that  
facilitate the production  

of lighter cars

Magnetic materials

Printer parts

Energy-saving systems

Life science products

Raw materials for cosmetics

Support Cooperation

Organic electronic materials,

Battery, Capacitor,  Magnetic  

recording materials, Inorganic

electronic materials, Crystal growth  

process, Thin film deposition

process, Precision fabricating

process, Micro-system process,

Functional gases, Ultimate conditions

process

Heat transfer system,

Casting process,

Plasticity processing,

Bonding,

Functional metallic materials

Functional molecular design,

Controlled reaction design,

High-performance catalysts,

Specialty polymer design,

Fine particles, 

Biochemistry,

Organic chemicals manufacturing  
 process,

Surface and interface chemistry

Structural Analysis; Chemical Analysis; Computational Science

27 Technology Platforms
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SSHOWA DENKO AT A GLANCE

Chemicals

Chemicals (caustic soda, chlorine, acrylonitrile, and ammo-
nia), gases (fluorocarbons, oxygen, nitrogen, and hydrogen),
specialty chemicals (amino acids, stabilized vitamin C, analyt-
ical columns, and specialty polymers), and agrochemicals

Electronics

HDs, compound semiconductors, rare earth magnetic
alloys, specialty gases, alternatives to chlorinated solvents
and other high-purity chemicals, ceramic materials for semi-
conductors, and fine carbons

Inorganic Materials

Ceramics (aluminum hydroxide, alumina, abrasives, and
refractories) and carbons (graphite electrodes)

Aluminum

Ingots, sheets, extruded products, high-purity foils for
capacitors, fabricated products (forged products, heat
exchangers, aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers,
and beverage cans)

Percentage of Net Sales Sales: 235,124
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 78,232
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 94,735
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 50,969
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 230,306
(Millions of yen)

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

11.3%

Petrochemicals

Olefins (ethylene and propylene), organic chemicals (acetic
acid, vinyl acetate monomer, and ethyl acetate), and plastic
products
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Petrochemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2003 2002 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 235,124 227,753 +7,372 +3.2%

Operating income 11,971 9,955 +2,016 +20.3%

In 2003, sales of olefins were up due to increases
in shipment volumes. Meanwhile, sales of organic
chemicals fell, mainly as a result of the transfer of
the acrylonitrile business to the Chemicals seg-
ment. Sales of plastics also fell due to an alliance
in the polyethylene business and resultant non-
consolidation of the business in the latter half of
the year. In all, the Petrochemicals segment’s
sales for the year increased 3.2%, to ¥235,124
million. Operating income jumped 20.3%, to
¥11,971 million, as increased shipment volumes
of olefins and ethylene plant cost reductions
more than offset the adverse effect of higher
feedstock costs.

Olefins Ethylene production in Japan totaled
7.37 million tons in 2003, an increase of 3.0%
from the preceding year, reflecting brisk exports
of derivatives to Asian countries, centering on
China, and steady domestic demand.

Showa Denko’s ethylene production increased
13.6%, to 645,000 tons, as a maintenance shut-
down, which took place in the previous year, was
not required in 2003. Sales of olefins were up
due to increases in shipment volumes and selling
prices, the latter reflecting higher naphtha costs.
Operating income improved as a result of the
higher shipment volumes of ethylene, continued

cost reductions in ethylene plant operation, and
increases in the selling prices of propylene and
other fractions.

Organic Chemicals Sales of acetic acid and
vinyl acetate monomer were up. However, the
shipment volumes of ethyl acetate were down,
and the acrylonitrile business was transferred to
the Chemicals segment in 2003, resulting in an
overall decline in sales of organic chemicals.

Operating income decreased, as the rise in
the selling price of our organic chemical prod-
ucts, both at home and abroad, was not enough
to fully offset the increase in naphtha costs.

Showa Aluminum Powder K.K., a consolidated
subsidiary, increased its sales of aluminum paste
products, mainly for electric appliance coating
applications, as a result of expanded domestic
and overseas shipping volumes.

New Developments To meet the growing
demand for ethyl acetate in Asia, we established
Japan Ethyl Acetate Co., Ltd., as a joint venture
with Kyowa Hakko Kogyo Co., Ltd. The new
company is scheduled to start operating its
100,000-ton-a-year ethyl acetate plant in the
Oita Petrochemical Complex in April 2004.

Plastics The polyethylene business of Japan
Polyolefins Co., Ltd., was merged with that of
Japan Polychem Corporation in September
2003. The new company, named Japan
Polyethylene Corporation, became one of our
consolidated affiliates to which the equity method
was applied, resulting in a decline in our plastics
sales. Meanwhile, the plastics sales of both
Showa Highpolymer Co., Ltd., and Heisei
Polymer Co., Ltd., remained at the previous
year’s levels.

Ethylene plant at our Oita Petrochemical Complex

RREVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Japan Ethyl Acetate Co., Ltd.’s
new plant

Aluminum paste for
coating mobile phones



Specialty Chemicals Sales of specialty chemi-
cals grew with the start of sales of new intermedi-
ates, increases in the shipment volumes of Shodex
analytical columns, and full integration of the poly-
chloroprene rubber business. SDS Biotech K.K.’s
agrochemical business saw a slight decline in
sales due to the effect of a stronger yen. Operating
income from specialty chemicals declined slightly,
due to declines in the selling prices of amino
acids and sodium polyacrylate thickener.

New Developments SDS Biotech acquired
three lines of agrochemicals from Ube Industries,
Ltd. Showa Denko sold its epichlorohydrin busi-
ness to Daiso Co., Ltd.

Electronics
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2003 2002 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 94,735 75,248 +19,488 +25.9%

Operating income 10,700 6,189 +4,511 +72.9%

Shipment volumes of hard disks (HDs) soared
due to strong demand, while those of compound
semiconductor epitaxial wafers for optical pickup
applications also grew. Specialty gases for semi-
conductor processing had higher shipment vol-
umes, centering on exports. The shipment volumes
and selling prices of rare earth magnetic alloys,
however, continued to stagnate. The total sales
in this segment increased 25.9%, to ¥94,735
million, compared with the previous year. Operating
income jumped 72.9%, to ¥10,700 million, due
mainly to the increase in the shipment volumes
of HDs. 

SDS Biotech's agrochemical products
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Chemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2003 2002 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 78,232 68,530 +9,701 +14.2%

Operating income 5,989 5,679 +310 +5.5%

Sales of gases & chemicals rose substantially,
due to increases in the volume of hydrofluorocar-
bons toll production and the transfer of the acry-
lonitrile business from the Petrochemicals segment.
Sales of specialty chemicals also rose, due to
increases in the shipment volumes of analytical
columns (Shodex), the start of sales of new inter-
mediates, and the full-year contribution of the
polychloroprene rubber business, which was
consolidated in the latter half of 2002. As a result,
the Chemicals segment’s sales in 2003 increased
14.2%, to ¥78,232 million. Operating income
increased 5.5%, to ¥5,989 million.

Gases & Chemicals While the selling prices of
industrial gases (oxygen, nitrogen, hydrogen,
etc.) and inorganic industrial chemicals fell, the
shipment volumes of ammonia for use in power
plants increased, as did the toll production of
HFC. The transfer of the acrylonitrile business
from the Petrochemicals segment further con-
tributed to the considerable increase in sales of
gases & chemicals. Meanwhile, operating income
declined due to increases in raw material costs.

Shodex liquid chromatography columns



existing LED materials, centering on gallium
phosphide (GaP), had lower selling prices and
shipment volumes. As a result, the total sales of
compound semiconductors declined. 

New Developments We successfully developed
four-element LEDs with exceptional brightness and
decided to commercialize them mainly for auto-
motive and outdoor display applications.

Rare Earths Sales of our rare earth magnetic
alloys fell due to continued stagnation in the magnet
manufacturing industry. 

New Developments In December 2003, opera-
tions began at our new neodymium-based magnetic
alloy production facility, jointly constructed with local
firms, in Baotou, Inner Mongolia, China.

Specialty Gases for Semiconductor
Processing Sales of specialty gases for semi-
conductor processing increased as Asian semi-
conductor markets recovered in the latter half of
the year.

New Developments We started selling C4F6, an
advanced dry etching gas that enables the process-
ing of system LSIs at extremely narrow line widths.

Ceramics The shipment volumes of SHOROX
LCD glass polishing agent increased, as did those
of titanium oxide for ceramic capacitor applications.
However, the shipment volumes of CMP slurries
declined.

Showa Denko K.K. 11

HDs Domestic and overseas PC shipments
increased in 2003. Furthermore, demand for hard
disk drives (HDDs) for non-PC applications grew
rapidly. Against this backdrop, shipment volumes
of our glass- and aluminum-substrate HDs
increased substantially, resulting in higher sales.

New Developments To meet brisk demand,
having acquired the Mitsubishi Chemical
Corporation Group’s HD business in Singapore,
we commenced its operations as Showa Denko
HD Singapore Pte. Ltd. in January 2003 and
expanded its production capacity by one million
disks a month as from October 2003. Furthermore,
we licensed our HD production technology to
Trace Storage Technology Corp. in Taiwan and
obtained the right to purchase HDs manufactured
by Trace on a preferential basis. As a result,
Showa Denko has established itself as one of the
world’s leading independent HD suppliers, with
the capacity to provide up to 8.3 million HDs
a month.

Compound Semiconductors The market for
laser-diode epitaxial wafers for DVD/CD-R optical
pickups grew, and sales of four-element, high-
brightness LEDs remained steady. However,

Four-element LEDs with exceptional brightness

Baotou Showa Rare Earth Hi-Tech New Material Co., Ltd., pro-
duces neodymium-iron-boron magnetic alloy.

HDs and HDDs with diameters of 1.8, 2.5, and 3.5 inches
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Inorganic Materials products for electronics

New Developments We have developed tita-
nium oxide paste (SP-X) for use in the electrodes
of dye-sensitized solar cells and have begun
sample shipments.

Fine Carbons Sales of VGCF carbon fiber
increased due to higher shipment volumes, which
reflected the growth of the lithium-ion battery market.

New Developments We established MEFS
Co., Ltd., a joint venture with Professor Morinobu
Endo of Shinshu University’s Faculty of Engineering,
to conduct research on advanced carbon
materials.

To meet growing demand for solid conductive
polymer aluminum capacitors, mainly from the
PC market, we decided to construct a second
production line at our site in Oyama, Tochigi
Prefecture.

Inorganic Materials
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2003 2002 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 50,969 56,878 -5,909 -10.4%

Operating income 2,654 1,369 +1,285 +93.9%

Although sales of ceramics maintained the level
of the previous year, sales of carbons & metallic
materials fell following our withdrawal from fer-
rochrome production in Japan. As a result, the
Inorganic Materials segment’s sales in 2003
decreased 10.4%, to ¥50,969 million. However,
operating income jumped 93.9%, to ¥2,654 mil-
lion, due to cost reductions.

Ceramics Sales of ceramics leveled off, but
operating income increased as a result of cost
reduction efforts.

New Developments In cooperation with
Mitsubishi Corporation, we established
Lianyungang Zhaoling Abrasives Co., Ltd., in
Jiangsu Province, China, for the production of
ceramic abrasive grains.

Carbons & Metallic Materials Sales of
graphite electrodes in Japan were almost
unchanged from the previous year. Showa Denko
Carbon, Inc.’s sales declined slightly due to the
effect of the rise in the value of the yen. In
February 2003, we withdrew from ferrochrome
production in Japan. In all, sales of carbons &
metallic materials fell, but operating income
improved.

Aluminum
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2003 2002 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 230,306 245,610 -15,304 -6.2%

Operating income 11,647 12,894 -1,247 -9.7%

Sales of aluminum ingots were maintained at the
previous year’s level. The shipment volumes of
such high-value products as Shotic forged alu-
minum products and photosensitive drums
increased. Meanwhile, domestic shipment

Graphite electrode poles and
connecting pins

Electric arc furnace in which
electrodes are used



fall in shipment volumes. Meanwhile, our sub-
sidiary in the Czech Republic increased its sales
due to a rise in shipment volumes following the
start-up of the second production line and the
transfer of production from our plant in Japan.
Sales at our subsidiary in Thailand increased only
slightly as the effect of the stronger yen offset
increases in shipment volumes. Our U.S. sub-
sidiary recorded a fall in sales due to a decline
in shipment volumes.

Aluminum Cans Sales of aluminum cans
decreased due to a fall in shipment volumes,
reflecting increased taxes on low-malt beer from
April 2003 and an unusually cool summer. Showa
Aluminum Can Corporation has decided to start
producing aluminum bottles, mainly for soft drink
applications.

New Developments Showa Denko Packaging
Co., Ltd., concentrated its production in the Kansai
region at its Hikone Plant, where a second facility
has been constructed to increase production.

By merging two agents in western Japan,
we have established Showa Denko Aluminum
Trading K.K. as a means to consolidate the dis-
tribution channels for our aluminum sheets
and extrusions in the region.

We also established Showa Denko (Dalian)
Co., Ltd., in Dalian, Liaoning Province, China,
as our subsidiary for the production of aluminum
cylinders for laser beam printers. The company
started commercial production in December
2003.

We have shifted the production of heat exchan-
gers for direct-cooling, home-use refrigerators
from Japan to Thailand and terminated domestic
production.

Showa Denko K.K. 13

volumes of extrusions and heat exchangers
declined. As a result, the Aluminum segment’s
sales fell 6.2%, to ¥230,306 million. Operating
income also fell 9.7%, to ¥11,647 million, despite
cost reduction efforts.

Rolled Products Sales of high-purity foils for
capacitors were up due to an increase in export
volumes. The shipment volumes of aluminum
alloy ST60, used in the heat sinks of plasma dis-
play panels, also increased. However, there was
a slight decline in the sales of commodity alu-
minum sheets. In all, sales of rolled products
remained at the level of the previous year.

Extrusions Sales of extrusions for automotive
parts applications were steady. However, with
regard to extrusions for the mainstream construc-
tion market, both volumes and prices fell, resulting
in an overall decline in extrusion sales. To reduce
costs, we cut the number of extruding machines
and closed the Sakai Plant, concentrating our
production at the Oyama and Hikone plants.

Shotic Sales of Shotic forged aluminum prod-
ucts were up, due to brisk demand both in Japan
and overseas for their use in automobile air
conditioners. 

Aluminum Specialty Products Sales of alu-
minum cylinders for laser beam printers rose, due
partly to increased shipments of color printers.

Heat Exchangers Domestic sales of automo-
tive heat exchangers decreased as a result of a

Capacitors containing our high-purity aluminum foils

Showa Denko (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd., produces aluminum
cylinders for laser beam
printers.

Aluminum beverage bottle



14 Annual Report 2003

Showa Denko has been performing its Responsible
Care activities since 1995, when it established
action guidelines to implement the program.
Responsible Care activities are conducted within
our five business segments (13 business divisions
and 12 regional offices), three branches, an R&D
Center, and 17 subsidiaries/affiliates, based on vol-
untary, specific action plans prepared in line with
the Responsible Care Committee’s basic plan. The
following are some examples of our activities:

ENERGY CONSERVATION 
We are making our best efforts to conserve energy in
order to contribute to the prevention of global warming
and protect natural resources. Our rate of energy con-
sumption by basic energy unit in 2002 was reduced to
82% of the 1990 figure. Approximately 20% of our total
electricity requirements are now met by our hydroelectric
power plants, a clean source of energy.

REDUCTION OF INDUSTRIAL WASTE
We are committed to effectively using and reducing the
volume of industrial waste discharge. Owing to various
measures such as the use of inorganic sludge (in cement,
for example), the final volume of landfill disposal in 2002
was reduced to 22% of the 1990 base level.

PROMOTION OF RESOURCE 
CONSERVATION AND RECYCLING

We are promoting resource conservation and recycling
at all of our operation sites. For example, under the

ENVIRONMENT-RELATED INVESTMENT 
(Cumulative value since 1990)
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RESPONSIBLE CARE ACTIVITIES

leadership of a special committee, Showa Denko employ-
ees are actively recycling aluminum cans and the Company
is employing an increasing amount of recycled aluminum
cans and sashes as raw materials. In addition, we started
utilizing waste plastic—industrial waste and used contain-
ers and wrapping for consumer products—as feedstock at
our Kawasaki Plant in 2003. The collected waste plastic is
crushed, formed, and gasified before being recycled into
liquid ammonia and other chemical products.

DEVELOPMENT OF ENVIRONMENT-
FRIENDLY PRODUCTS AND TECHNOLOGIES

We are working hard to develop products and technolo-
gies that contribute to the protection of the environment,
safety, and health. Examples include colloidal titanium
oxide for use as a photocatalyst, nanoparticles of titanium
oxide for coating (Nanotitania), and a device for decom-
posing and adsorbing surplus anesthetic gas (Anesclean).

ACQUISITION OF ISO 14001 CERTIFICATION
All of our operation sites have already acquired certifica-
tion under the ISO 14001 international standard for envi-
ronmental management systems. In 2003, five of our
subsidiaries and affiliates were certified. As of April 2004,
environmental management activities were being imple-
mented at 17 of our subsidiaries and affiliates, as well as
at our operation sites, in accordance with the standard.

C

Note: Following the merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation in 2001, the Company
extended aluminum can recycling activities to all of its operation sites. While our earli-
er statistics had covered solely the recycling at Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K., as from
2002, the volume of aluminum recovered at other operation sites is also included. In
this graph, data from 2001 and before are depicted according to the new standard.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYC
Showa Denko Vision

We defined our vision in January 2002 when we
formulated our new business plan, the “Sprout Project.”
The vision, though brief, addresses three critical fac-
tors: shareholder interests, customer satisfaction, and
our contribution to society. We know we can increase
our corporate value only when our products and serv-
ices are satisfactory to our customers and, at the same
time, useful and safe from a social point of view. Further-
more, the increase in corporate value will enable us to
give satisfaction to our shareholders. Guided by this
vision, all members of the Showa Denko Group of
companies are working together to realize the vision
and fulfill our responsibilities to society.

Vision
We at Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies
will provide products and services that are useful
and safe and exceed our customers’ expectations,
thereby enhancing the value of the Group, giving
satisfaction to our shareholders, and contributing to
the sound growth of society on a global scale.

Code of Conduct and Guidelines
We established the code of conduct for Showa Denko
Group employees in January 1998. We then enacted
its guidelines a year later, clarifying the meaning of the
code through details and examples. In their daily activi-
ties, all officers and employees of the Showa Denko
Group are following the code and its guidelines to retain
public confidence, contribute to the prosperity of soci-
ety, and ensure the continued growth of the Group.

The code of conduct
As Showa Denko officers and employees,
1. We will develop and provide useful and safe technolo-

gies, products, and services to contribute to the sound
growth of society;

2. We will observe the laws of Japan and of the foreign
countries in which we operate, abide by the Company
rules, and strive to maintain the social order;

3. We will conduct business in Japan and abroad based
on the principle of fair and free competition;

4. We will do our best to ensure safety and to protect the
global environment;

5. We will make sure that we maintain good communica-
tions with the public and disclose accurate information
on our Company in a timely manner;

6. We will respect human rights and create a cheerful and
comfortable working environment; and

7. We will act as a member of the international society
and contribute to the development of the regions in
which we operate.

Compliance
We give the highest priority to social justice and corpo-
rate ethics. To ensure full compliance with the laws
and regulations throughout the Group, we established
a Corporate Ethics Committee in January 2003. At the
same time, we opened new channels of communica-
tion whereby anyone who is concerned about possible
violation of laws, internal regulations, or corporate
ethics can report the matter directly to a Company offi-
cial by intranet, e-mail, telephone, or letter. This is
intended as a measure to prevent the occurrence of
transgressions or to correct them in their early stages.
The Company will guard the informant’s privacy and
make sure that there will be no unfavorable treatment.

As from 2004, we started observing Corporate
Ethics Month in Japan. Every January, all officers and
employees will carefully reread the code of conduct
and its guidelines to renew their awareness and
recheck their behavior so as to further enhance the
level of compliance and corporate ethics.

Corporate Governance
We have taken various measures to strengthen corporate
governance as a tool to ensure the continued growth and
long-term value of the Company. Examples include:

Reform of the board of directors
In line with its increasingly global operations, the
Company introduced a corporate officers system in
2001 to increase the speed of decision making at the
board of directors’ meetings. The number of directors
decreased by four in three years, resulting in 11 at
present. The responsibilities of directors and corporate
officers have been defined clearly to make sure that
respective operations are duly supervised. At the same
time, corporate officers are ensured of the efficient and
speedy execution of day-to-day operations.

Establishment of the Audit Office
The Company reorganized its Internal Audit Committee
in March 2001 to strengthen internal auditing functions.
The resulting Audit Office is responsible for planning
and implementing internal audits to prevent mistakes
and wrongdoing. By doing so, the office ensures that
a proper internal control system is in place and, when
necessary, takes corrective measures.

Used aluminum cans and sashes
for recycling as raw materials

Waste plastics gasification plant

The Corporate R&D Center opens
to the public annually.
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Showa Denko and its Group companies are
promoting R&D in line with their medium-
term consolidated business plan to establish
technological advantages in the fields of
petrochemicals, fine chemicals, electronics,
aluminum, and new materials.

We are focusing our R&D resources on 12
SMUs—market segments in which we can
expect to achieve high growth by fully utiliz-
ing our core technologies. In particular, we
are continuing to pursue and improve syner-
gies through the interconnection of our inor-
ganic/aluminum and organic chemical
technologies in our aim to create individual-
ized product lines and businesses.

Showa Denko and its Group companies
invested ¥16,983 million in R&D in 2003. A
breakdown by segment of R&D efforts and
investments during the year is as follows:

PETROCHEMICALS
In this segment, we are fully utilizing our catalyst
technology to strengthen the competitiveness of
our basic petrochemicals products, while devel-
oping new derivatives. In the area of acetyl chem-
icals, we are improving catalysts for the production
of acetic acid and ethyl acetate. As for the propy-
lene-based product line, we are developing appli-
cations for our proprietary allyl ester resin. At the
same time, we are developing other allyl deriva-
tives for environment/IT-related applications. The
Petrochemicals segment invested ¥3,144 million
in R&D in 2003.

CHEMICALS
Development is under way for such specialty
chemicals as organic intermediates for disinfes-
tants and agrochemicals, base materials for
cosmetics, photosensitive materials, and nano
materials. As for organic intermediates, we launched
new compounds for pesticides and continued
developing new substances for photographic
chemicals by fully utilizing our position in raw mate-
rials. We are also developing new materials for
metal-organic chemical vapor deposition (MOCVD)
processes and biodegradable chelating agents.

Innovations in base materials for cosmetics
include new applications for stabilized vitamin C,
following the successful development of nanopar-
ticles for ultraviolet shielding, and an innovative
biosurfactant.

Regarding photosensitive materials, we are
developing photoimagable dry film type overcoats,

waterborne etching resist inks, and photoinitia-
tors through our subsidiary Nippon Polytech Corp.
We are also developing new applications for our
nano materials, including nanoparticles of surface-
modified metal oxides, master batches of titanium
oxide for photocatalysts, and master batches of zinc
oxide for ultraviolet shielding. The Chemicals seg-
ment’s R&D investment amounted to ¥2,249 mil-
lion in 2003.

ELECTRONICS
In the area of display elements/communication
devices and their materials, we are continuing to
develop LEDs with higher brightness and diverse
colors. Specifically, we are developing ultra bright
aluminum indium gallium phosphide (AlInGaP)
LEDs and gallium nitride (GaN) LEDs for white
lighting. We are also developing laser diode epi-
taxial wafers for optical pickups, with which we
are aiming to achieve high-speed rewritable
DVDs. Regarding optical communications, we
are continuing to develop high-performance epi-
taxial wafers for laser diodes and photodiodes
and indium phosphide (InP) substrates with lower
dislocation and improved flatness.

As for storage materials and components, we
are increasing the recording density of HD media
by introducing longitudinal recording. At the same
time, we are developing advanced types of HD
media based on innovative technologies as well
as small-diameter HD media for use in mobile
applications. Regarding solid conductive polymer
aluminum capacitors, we are adding new product
types with lower height and higher capacitance
to meet growing demand from the notebook
PC market.

In the area of rare earth magnetic alloys,
centering on neodymium-iron-boron alloys, we
are continuing to develop new technologies for
controlling their microstructures by fully utilizing

RRESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Cosmetic products that contain stabilized vitamin C, nanoparticles, 
and/or a biosurfactant
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our metal refining/casting expertise. We are also
developing new applications through the R&D of
innovative technologies.

In cooperation with Professor Morinobu Endo
of Shinshu University, Showa Denko established
MEFS Co., Ltd., to promote research into such
advanced carbon materials as VGCF and carbon
nanotubes. The joint venture is proceeding with
the development of their applications, centering
on energy devices.

In the area of semiconductor processing, we
are developing CMP slurries for metal polishing in
addition to the successfully commercialized ceria-
based CMP slurry products. The development is
being accelerated through synergies with busi-
nesses involved in high-purity gases for etching
and cleaning as well as solvents and solutions.
The Electronics segment invested ¥3,798 million
in R&D in 2003.

INORGANIC MATERIALS
Our development efforts in this segment focus on
nano materials for next-generation product lines.
The development of ultrafine particles of titanium
oxide is progressing for use in multilayered
ceramic capacitors and as a photocatalyst. We
are developing applications of nanoparticle titani-
um oxide for use as a visible-light-responsive
photocatalyst and in dye-sensitized solar cells.
Various functional ceramic fillers and advanced
ceramics, including super abrasives, are being

developed. The Inorganic Materials segment
spent ¥168 million on R&D in 2003.

ALUMINUM
We are developing thin-wall tubes and other
components for car air-conditioner heat
exchangers as we work to reduce their size and
weight and improve performance. Also for auto-
motive applications, we are developing forged
parts for compressors and drive units, forged
suspension arms, and their materials to capitalize
on aluminum’s advantages. In addition, we are
developing new heat exchangers and sub-frames
for next-generation, low-emission vehicles.

Regarding electronic applications, we launched
high-precision, high-quality aluminum cylinders
(substrates and extruded tubes) for laser beam
color printers. Developments are continuing for
high-capacitance aluminum foils for use in elec-
trolytic capacitors and high-strength, highly heat-
conductive aluminum alloys for use in the heat
sinks of plasma display panels. Various types
of heat sinks and heat exchangers for energy
devices are also being developed. The Aluminum
segment’s R&D investment amounted to ¥2,208
million in 2003.

COMMON R&D PROJECTS
Showa Denko’s Corporate R&D Center conducts
basic research into new areas with a view to fos-
tering new businesses and developing technolo-
gies common to different segments. The Analysis
& Physical Properties Center and the Safety
Evaluation Center support each segment’s R&D
efforts by conducting analyses and investigations. 

In the area of energy devices, we are conducting
collaborative research for developing carbon sepa-
rators for solid polymer-type fuel cells as part of a
national project. We have developed the world’s
first phosphorescent polymer for use in organic
electroluminescent devices, and we are progress-
ing with research for commercializing the polymer.

Common R&D expenditures in 2003 totaled
¥5,416 million.

Dye-sensitized solar cell structure

Titanium oxide paste coating on 
a flexible resin substrate for use 
in dye-sensitized solar cells
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CONSOLIDATED SIX-YEAR SUMMARY M
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 2003

For the year
Net sales............................................................. ¥689,366 ¥674,018 ¥   708,900 ¥   747,000 ¥662,747 ¥   730,906 $6,434,855

Petrochemicals ............................................... 235,124 227,753 233,647 232,294 192,996 218,240 2,194,754
Chemicals ....................................................... 78,232 68,530 73,020 78,782 63,902 71,720 730,253
Electronics ...................................................... 94,735 75,248 77,742 94,393 81,976 85,412 884,299
Inorganic Materials .......................................... 50,969 56,878 54,555 57,778 61,192 75,396 475,768
Aluminum........................................................ 230,306 245,610 269,936 283,752 262,682 280,137 2,149,781

Operating income ............................................... 38,546 31,303 19,169 29,594 25,073 28,696 359,808
Net income (loss) ................................................ 10,317 13,024 (34,260) 2,763 (633) (15,184) 96,299
R&D expenditures ............................................... 16,983 15,443 15,447 16,588 22,513 23,770 158,527
Capital expenditures ........................................... 40,848 28,446 32,299 40,023 37,180 49,004 381,294
Depreciation and amortization............................. 34,543 36,956 38,893 40,752 42,592 42,828 322,440

At year-end
Total assets ........................................................ 939,879 986,544 1,030,872 1,088,623 961,692 1,016,482 8,773,254
Total stockholders’ equity ................................... 166,087 150,121 139,458 144,676 85,883 87,024 1,550,334

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note)

Per share
Net income (loss)............................................. ¥009.07 ¥011.44 ¥ (30.78) ¥    2.66 ¥ (0.61) ¥(14.63) $0.085
Stockholders’ equity........................................ 145.96 131.92 122.54 139.34 82.74 83.84 1.36
Cash dividends 
(applicable to the period) ............................... 2.00 — — — — 2.00 0.019

Number of employees at year-end.................. 10,623 10,933 11,970 13,207 12,475 13,464
Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥107.13 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange at December 31, 2003.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31
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Consolidated net sales in 2003 totaled ¥689,366 million (US$6,435 million), an

increase of ¥15,348 million, or 2.3%, from the previous term. Sales in the

Petrochemicals, Chemicals, and Electronics segments increased, while sales in

the Inorganic Materials and Aluminum segments declined. 

The cost of sales increased ¥12,566 million, or 2.3 %, to ¥563,828 million

(US$5,263 million), due mainly to increases in the cost of petrochemical feed-

stock, centering on naphtha. Owing to rationalization efforts, selling, general

and administrative expenses fell ¥4,461 million, or 4.9%, to ¥86,991 million

(US$812 million), notwithstanding increases in R&D expenses. 

Operating income, which increased in all segments other than Aluminum,

climbed ¥7,243 million, or 23.1%, to ¥38,546 million (US$360 million). 

R&D expenditures increased ¥1,540 million, or 10.0%, to ¥16,983 million

(US$159 million).

A breakdown of net sales and operating income by business segment is as follows:

Petrochemicals 

Sales of olefins were up due to increases in the shipment volumes of ethylene,

propylene, and other olefins, as a maintenance shutdown that took place in

the previous year was not required in 2003. Sales of organic chemicals decreased

as a lower shipment volume of ethyl acetate and the transfer of the acrylonitrile

business to the Chemicals segment more than offset increases in the sales of

acetic acid and vinyl acetate monomer.

The polyethylene business of Japan Polyolefins Co., Ltd., was merged with

that of Japan Polychem Corporation of the Mitsubishi Chemical Corporation

Group in September 2003. The new company, named Japan Polyethylene

Corporation, has become one of our affiliates to which the equity method is

applied and, as a result, sales of plastics declined substantially. Meanwhile,
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the plastics sales of both Showa Highpolymer Co., Ltd., and Heisei Polymer

Co., Ltd., remained at the previous year’s levels. Overall, the Petrochemicals

segment’s sales increased ¥7,372 million, or 3.2%, to ¥235,124 million

(US$2,195 million). Operating income also increased ¥2,016 million, or 20.3%,

to ¥11,971 million (US$112 million). 

Chemicals 

Sales of gases & chemicals were up due to an increase in the toll production

volume of HFC and the transfer of the acrylonitrile business from the Petrochemicals

segment. Sales of specialty chemicals rose, accompanied by an increase in the

shipment volume of Shodex analytical columns, the start of sales of new phar-

maceutical/ agrochemical intermediates, and the full-year contribution of the

polychloroprene synthetic rubber business, consolidated in the latter half of

2002. These factors more than compensated for decreases in sales of vitamin C

derivatives for feeds and sodium polyacrylate thickener. SDS Biotech K.K.’s

agrochemical business saw a slight decline in sales as a result of lower selling

prices due to the appreciation of the yen. As a result, the Chemicals segment’s

sales rose ¥9,701 million, or 14.2%, to ¥78,232 million (US$730 million), and

operating income rose ¥310 million, or 5.5%, to ¥5,989 million (US$56 million).

Electronics 

The shipment volume of HDs increased substantially, due to strong demand

and the start-up of new production facilities in Singapore, as did the shipment

volume of compound semiconductor epitaxial wafers for optical pickup applica-

tions. While specialty gases for semiconductor processing recorded higher ship-

ment volumes, centering on exports, the shipment volumes and selling prices of

rare earth magnetic alloys continued to stagnate. Overall, the Electronics seg-

ment’s sales increased ¥19,488 million, or 25.9%, to ¥94,735 million (US$884

million). Operating income jumped ¥4,511 million, or 72.9%, to ¥10,700 million

(US$100 million).

OPERATING INCOME
(Billions of yen)
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MMANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Inorganic Materials 

Although sales of ceramics were maintained at the level of the previous year,

sales of carbons & metallic materials fell following our withdrawal from fer-

rochrome production in Japan. In the graphite electrodes business, domestic

sales were maintained at the previous year’s level, but U.S. subsidiary Showa

Denko Carbon, Inc.’s sales declined slightly due to the effect of the stronger

yen. As a result, the Inorganic Materials segment’s sales were down ¥5,909 mil-

lion, or 10.4%, at ¥50,969 million (US$476 million), but operating income was

up ¥1,285 million, or 93.9%, at ¥2,654 million (US$25 million).

Aluminum 

Sales of aluminum ingots and rolled products increased slightly. Sales of Shotic

aluminum forgings for automotive air-conditioner applications rose due to an

increase in shipment volume, and sales of specialty products also rose as the

shipment volume of aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers expanded.

Meanwhile, sales of extrusions fell due to a decrease in the shipment volume to

the construction industry. Sales of heat exchangers also fell as a result of lower

shipment volume in Japan, despite an increase in the shipment volume at our

subsidiary in the Czech Republic. Sales of aluminum cans fell slightly due to

increased taxes on low-malt beer and an unusually cool summer. As a result,

the Aluminum segment’s sales fell ¥15,304 million, or 6.2%, to ¥230,306 million

(US$2,150 million). Operating income also fell ¥1,247 million, or 9.7%, to

¥11,647 million (US$109 million).

Operations in Japan

The Petrochemicals segment’s sales rose due to increases in the shipment vol-

umes of olefins, despite lower sales of plastics following the reorganization of

the polyethylene business and the resultant application of the equity method.

The Chemicals segment’s sales were up due mainly to an increase in the ship-

ment volume of synthetic rubber. The Electronics segment’s sales rose as a

result of increases in the shipment volumes of HDs and specialty gases for

semiconductor processing. The Inorganic Materials segment’s sales fell as a

GEOGRAPHIC AREA

result of our withdrawal from ferrochrome production in Japan. The Aluminum

segment’s sales declined due to decreases in the shipment volumes of heat

exchangers, extrusions, and aluminum cans. As a result, consolidated sales

from operations in Japan increased ¥10,887 million, or 1.8 %, to ¥619,320 mil-

lion (US$5,781 million). Consolidated operating income from operations in

Japan increased ¥5,694 million, or 16.6 %, to ¥40,040 million (US$374 million),

due partly to cost reductions.

Operations Overseas

Sales of hard disks increased substantially following the start-up of new sub-

sidiary Showa Denko HD Singapore Pte. Ltd. In the heat exchangers business,

our subsidiary in the Czech Republic recorded increased sales due to a rise in

shipment volume, but sales at our U.S. subsidiary fell due to a lower shipment

volume. The graphite electrode business in the United States recorded a slight

decline in sales as a result of the appreciation of the yen. Showa Denko Europe

GmbH, located in Germany, saw a decline in sales as a result of its withdrawal

from the tantalum powder business. As a result, sales from operations overseas

increased ¥4,462 million, or 6.8%, to ¥70,046 million (US$654 million). Operating

income rose ¥1,418 million, or 78.2%, to ¥3,234 million (US$30 million).

The gap between interest expense and interest and dividend income declined

¥815 million, to ¥9,482 million, as a result of reductions in interest-bearing debt.

The gain on investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, to which

the equity method is applied, increased ¥1,053 million, to ¥1,614 million (US$15

million), due partly to improvement in the polypropylene business. The gain on

sales of marketable and investment securities, net, plummeted to ¥1,915 million

(US$18 million), a decline of ¥13,721 million from the previous term, when we

sold shares in Showa Cabot Supermetals K.K. The loss on sales and disposal

of property, plant and equipment increased ¥718 million, to ¥3,799 million

(US$35 million), due in part to the transfer of the polyethylene business. 

The loss on the write-down of marketable and investment securities fell

¥5,103 million, to ¥270 million (US$3 million), as we recorded a substantial
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amount of write-down at the end of 2002. To improve cost-competitiveness,

Showa Denko K.K. and some of the Group companies reduced headcount and

recorded ¥2,585 million (US$24 million) in special severance pay. A ¥2,968 mil-

lion (US$28 million) reserve was provided to prepare for the restructuring of cer-

tain businesses to be implemented in 2004.

As a result, the Company posted before-tax income of ¥18,769 million

(US$175 million), down ¥223 million from the previous term. After income taxes,

net, of ¥8,655 million (US$81 million) and a loss in minority interests of ¥203 mil-

lion (US$2 million), the Company recorded net income of ¥10,317 million

(US$96 million), a decline of ¥2,707 million, or 20.8%, over the previous year.

Total Assets

Total assets decreased ¥46,665 million, or 4.7%, from the end of the pre-

vious year, to ¥939,879 million (US$8,773 million). Cash and cash equivalents

increased ¥3,225 million, to ¥26,485 million (US$247 million). Notes and

accounts receivable decreased ¥7,286 million, to ¥156,309 million (US$1,459

million), due partly to the transfer of the polyethylene business. Inventories fell

¥19,526 million, to ¥60,921 million (US$569 million), as a result of strenuous

efforts to reduce them and the transfer of the polyethylene business. Tangible

fixed assets fell ¥27,449 million, to ¥538,154 million (US$5,023 million), due

mainly to the polyethylene business transfer, notwithstanding an increase in

capital investments. Total investments and other assets increased ¥5,304 million,

to ¥128,087 million (US$1,196 million). This was because a ¥16,855 million

increase in investment securities, resulting from a rise in the appraised value

at the year-end, more than offset a ¥7,742 million decrease in deferred tax

assets—non-current.

Liabilities

Interest-bearing debt fell ¥53,740 million, or 9.2%, from the end of the previous

year, to ¥527,389 million (US$4,923 million), as a result of an increase in free

cash flows and the application of the equity method to the polyethylene busi-

ness following its reorganization. The reserve for restructuring expenses

decreased ¥4,803 million, to ¥4,214 million (US$39 million), as a result of

FINANCIAL POSITION

the partial disposition of the reserve following the dissolution of a ferrochrome

production subsidiary in Japan.

Stockholders’ Equity

Retained earnings at the year-end amounted to ¥13,271 million (US$124 mil-

lion), an increase of ¥11,970 million from the previous year-end. This reflects

a net increase of ¥1,652 million in retained earnings, mainly due to changes

in affiliates to which the equity method is applied, added to net income of

¥10,317 million (US$96 million). As a result, total stockholders’ equity

increased ¥15,966 million, or 10.6%, to ¥166,087 million (US$1,550 million). 

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were up ¥12,402 million, to ¥40,848 million (US$381 mil-

lion). Chief items were the construction of ammonia production facilities that use

waste plastic as a raw material (the Chemicals segment), an increase in HD

supply capacity (the Electronics segment), and an expansion of aluminum can

production capacity (the Aluminum segment).

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities increased ¥26,066 million, to

¥63,561 million (US$593 million), due to an increase in operating income as

well as reductions in the payment of special severance pay and purchasing

expenses. Net cash used in investing activities increased ¥24,253 million, to

¥25,099 million (US$234 million), as expenditures for the acquisition of fixed

assets rose ¥11,548 million while revenue from sales of investment securities

fell ¥19,996 million. The sale of shares in Showa Cabot Supermetals in the pre-

vious year was reflected in the substantial fall in revenue from sales of invest-

ment securities in 2003. Net cash used in financing activities decreased ¥7,204

million, to ¥35,900 million (US$335 million), mainly as a result of a reduction in

interest-bearing debt. As a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2003

increased ¥3,225 million, to ¥26,485 million (US$247 million).
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(Billions of yen)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
0

30

60

90

120

150

180

INTEREST-BEARING DEBT
(Billions of yen)

300

400

500

600

700

800

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003



22 Annual Report 2003

CCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

ASSETS 2003 2002 2003

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)............................................................................... ¥0,026,485 ¥0,023,260 $00,247,226
Marketable securities (Notes 2 and 5)........................................................................................ 3 4 23
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 6) ................................................................................... 156,309 163,595 1,459,064
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 2) ............................................................................... (1,254) (1,309) (11,709)
Inventories (Note 2) ................................................................................................................... 60,921 80,447 568,668
Deferred tax assets—current (Note 9)........................................................................................ 6,718 7,834 62,711
Prepaid expenses and other current assets............................................................................... 13,119 12,562 122,457

Total current assets....................................................................................................... 262,301 286,394 2,448,439

Property, plant and equipment (Note 2)
Land ......................................................................................................................................... 291,469 295,527 2,720,701
Buildings and structures............................................................................................................ 216,592 219,212 2,021,771
Machinery and equipment ......................................................................................................... 608,672 676,040 5,681,623
Construction in progress ........................................................................................................... 6,535 8,960 61,000

..................................................................................................................................................... 1,123,268 1,199,739 10,485,095
Less: Accumulated depreciation................................................................................................ (585,114) (634,136) (5,461,719)

Net property, plant and equipment................................................................................ 538,154 565,603 5,023,376

Investments and other assets
Investment securities (Notes 2 and 5) ........................................................................................ 83,375 66,520 778,263
Long-term loans ....................................................................................................................... 2,602 7,881 24,287
Deferred tax assets—non-current (Note 9) ................................................................................ 16,668 24,410 155,587
Other......................................................................................................................................... 28,382 26,570 264,928
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2) .................................................................................. (2,939) (2,596) (27,438)

Total investments and other assets ............................................................................... 128,087 122,784 1,195,626

Excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired ................................................................. 11,336 11,762 105,813

Total assets................................................................................................................... ¥0,939,879 ¥0,986,544 $08,773,254

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
At December 31, 2003 and 2002
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2003 2002 2003

Current liabilities
Short-term debt (Note 7)................................................................................................................. ¥117,729 ¥150,506 $1,098,939
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) ...................................................................................... 73,830 160,971 689,167
Notes and accounts payable (Note 6) ............................................................................................. 119,246 124,855 1,113,101
Accrued liabilities

Income taxes.............................................................................................................................. 2,240 2,076 20,908
Other .......................................................................................................................................... 4,325 3,085 40,372

Reserve for restructuring expenses (Note 2).................................................................................... 4,214 9,017 39,335
Other current liabilities .................................................................................................................... 21,432 22,322 200,041

Total current liabilities ......................................................................................................... 343,016 472,833 3,201,863

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt less current portion (Note 7) .................................................................................. 335,829 269,652 3,134,782
Deferred tax liabilities—non-current (Note 9) ................................................................................... 6,353 5,995 59,301
Employees’ severance indemnities (Notes 2 and 8)......................................................................... 8,640 9,099 80,648
Deferred tax liabilities due to land revaluation.................................................................................. 23,929 24,702 223,365
Other long-term liabilities ................................................................................................................ 14,730 13,076 137,493

Total long-term liabilities ..................................................................................................... 389,481 322,524 3,635,588

Minority interests............................................................................................................................. 41,295 41,066 385,469

Contingent liabilities (Note 11)

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock

Authorized, 3,300,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding, 2003—1,138,100,738 shares .............................................................. 110,451 — 1,031,004
Issued and outstanding, 2002—1,138,100,738 shares .............................................................. — 110,451 —

Capital surplus................................................................................................................................ 8,175 8,174 76,308
Retained earnings........................................................................................................................... 13,271 1,302 123,875
Revaluation reserve (Note 12) ......................................................................................................... 34,832 34,080 325,136
Securities valuation surplus............................................................................................................. 2,501 (2,442) 23,347
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2)........................................................................... (3,096) (1,402) (28,899)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 2003—176,762 shares ..................................................................... (47) — (438)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 2002—159,373 shares ..................................................................... — (43) —

Total stockholders’ equity................................................................................................... 166,087 150,121 1,550,334

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .............................................................................. ¥939,879 ¥986,544 $8,773,254
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2003 2002 2003

Net sales............................................................................................................................................ ¥689,366 ¥674,018 $6,434,855
Cost of sales ..................................................................................................................................... 563,828 551,263 5,263,030

Gross profit ..................................................................................................................................... 125,538 122,755 1,171,825
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 13)............................................................... 86,991 91,452 812,017

Operating income............................................................................................................................ 38,546 31,303 359,808

Other income (expenses)
Interest and dividend income........................................................................................................... 1,025 1,089 9,571
Gain on the sale of marketable and investment securities, net ......................................................... 1,915 15,636 17,872
Subsidy for waste plastic recycle plant (Note 15) ............................................................................. 3,737 — 34,883
Interest expense .............................................................................................................................. (10,507) (11,385) (98,075)
Loss on the sale of property, plant and equipment, net ................................................................... (1,581) (718) (14,758)
Loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment, net............................................................. (2,218) (2,363) (20,706)
Write-down of marketable and investment securities ....................................................................... (270) (5,373) (2,522)
Special severance pay..................................................................................................................... (2,585) (2,774) (24,132)
Reserve for restructuring expenses (Note 2) .................................................................................... (2,968) (2,408) (27,708)
Other, net ........................................................................................................................................ (6,325) (4,014) (59,037)

Total .................................................................................................................................... (19,777) (12,311) (184,611)

Income before income taxes........................................................................................................... 18,769 18,992 175,197
Income taxes (Notes 2 and 9)

Current ............................................................................................................................................ 3,326 2,853 31,043
Deferred .......................................................................................................................................... 5,329 2,095 49,747

Minority interests ............................................................................................................................. (203) 1,019 (1,893)

Net income.......................................................................................................................... ¥010,317 ¥013,024 $0,096,299

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 3)

Per share amounts
Net income (Notes 2 and 16) ........................................................................................................... ¥9.07 ¥11.44 $0.085
Cash dividends (applicable to the period)......................................................................................... 2.00 — 0.019

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

C
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Thousands Millions of yen
Foreign

Number of Securities currency
shares of Common Capital Retained Revaluation valuation translation Treasury

common stock stock surplus earnings reserve surplus adjustments stock

Balance at December 31, 2001 .................................... 1,138,101 ¥110,451 ¥46,707 ¥(51,679) ¥33,657 ¥    250 ¥       73 ¥  (2)

Net income for the year ................................................ — — — 13,024 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation ..................... — — 110 203 — — — —
Increase due to exclusion from consolidation ............... — — — 31 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in equity method ................... — — — 221 — — — —
Increase due to merger with certain consolidated subsidiaries.... — — — 2,640 — — — —
Reversal of additional paid-in capital............................. — — (38,642) 38,642 — — — —
Decrease due to change in fiscal year of certain
consolidated subsidiaries ........................................... — — — (34) — — — —

Reversal of revaluation reserve ..................................... — — — (1,180) 1,180 — — —
Decrease due to exclusion from consolidation.............. — — — (498) — — — —
Decrease due to liquidation of companies accounted 
for by the equity method............................................... — — — (59) — — — —

Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses ................... — — — (10) — — — —
Decrease due to merger with certain consolidated subsidiaries .. — — — — (725) — — —
Increase due to valuation of securities .......................... — — — — — (2,692) — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2) ........ — — — — — — (1,474) —
(Increase) in treasury stock ........................................... — — — — — — — (41)
Others .......................................................................... — — — — (33) — — —

Balance at December 31, 2002 .................................... 1,138,101 ¥110,451 ¥08,174 ¥ 1,302 ¥34,080 ¥(2,442) ¥ (1,402) ¥(43)

Net income for the year ................................................ — — — 10,317 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in equity method ................... — — — 3,180 — — — —
Increase due to change in fiscal year of some 
non-consolidated affiliates to which the equity 
method is applied....................................................... — — — 24 — — — —

Adjustment for deferred income tax liabilities on
previously recognized asset revaluation gains.............. — — — 11 — — — —
Decrease due to exclusion in equity method................. — — — (1,555) — — — —
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses ................... — — — (8) — — — —
Increase due to valuation of securities .......................... — — — — — 4.943 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2) ........ — — — — — — (1,694) —
(Increase) in treasury stock ........................................... — — — — — — — (4)
Others .......................................................................... — — 0 — 752 — — —

Balance at December 31, 2003 .................................... 1,138,101 ¥110,451 ¥08,175 ¥  13,271 ¥34,832 ¥ 2,501 ¥ (3,096) ¥(47)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

Balance at December 31, 2002 .................................... 1,138,101 $1,031,004 $76,304 $ 12,153 $ 318,118 $(22,795) $(13,083) $(401)

Net income for the year ................................................ — — — 96,299 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in equity method ................... — — — 29,686 — — — —
Increase due to change in fiscal year of some 
non-consolidated affiliates to which the equity 
method is applied....................................................... — — — 220 — — — —

Adjustment for deferred income tax liabilities on
previously recognized asset revaluation gains.............. — — — 99 — — — —
Decrease due to exclusion in equity method................. — — — (14,511) — — — —
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses ................... — — — (72) — — — —
Increase due to valuation of securities .......................... — — — — — 46,143 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2) ........ — — — — — — (15,815) —
(Increase) in treasury stock ........................................... — — — — — — — (37)
Others .......................................................................... — — 4 — 7,019 — — —

Balance at December 31, 2003 .................................... 1,138,101 $1,031,004 $76,308 $123,875 $325,136 $ 23,347 $(28,899) $(438)

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

C
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS N
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2003 2002 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes .......................................................................................................... ¥018,769 ¥18,992 $0,175,197
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization.................................................................................................... 34,543 36,956 322,440
Amortization of excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired............................................... 1,124 1,967 10,493
Interest and dividend income ..................................................................................................... (1,025) (1,089) (9,571)
Interest expense......................................................................................................................... 10,507 11,385 98,075
Equity in earnings of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates................................................ (1,614) (561) (15,064)
Loss on sale and write-down of investment securities, net ......................................................... (1,684) (10,651) (15,723)
Loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment, net ....................................................... 2,218 2,363 20,706
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net .................................................................... 1,581 718 14,758

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables ......................................................................................... 8,017 (5,682) 74,839
Increase in inventories .................................................................................................................... 8,785 8,817 82,004
(Increase) decrease in trade payables............................................................................................. (8,606) 2,231 (80,335)
Other ............................................................................................................................................. 3,265 (13,861) 30,477

Subtotal ..................................................................................................................................... 75,880 51,584 708,300
Interest and dividends received ...................................................................................................... 1,441 1,391 13,449
Interest paid ................................................................................................................................... (10,635) (11,309) (99,268)
Income taxes paid.......................................................................................................................... (3,125) (4,171) (29,170)

Net cash provided by operating activities ....................................................................... 63,561 37,495 593,310

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities................................................................................. 4 446 33
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment............................................................. (40,217) (28,669) (375,402)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment................................................................... 17,411 3,836 162,518
Payments for purchases of investment securities ........................................................................... (9,389) (8,246) (87,639)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities ................................................................................. 5,234 25,230 48,854
Decrease in short-term loans, net................................................................................................... 1,231 5,381 11,490
Payments for long-term loans ........................................................................................................ (147) (1,488) (1,372)
Proceeds from collection of long-term loans................................................................................... 5,658 2,689 52,811
Other ............................................................................................................................................. (4,884) (24) (45,578)

Net cash used in investing activities ............................................................................... (25,099) (846) (234,285)

Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in short-term debt, net.................................................................................................... (18,280) (60,441) (170,632)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt..................................................................................... 142,450 116,457 1,329,695
Repayments of long-term debt....................................................................................................... (161,930) (86,330) (1,511,532)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds .................................................................................................. 3,000 2,000 28,003
Redemption of bonds .................................................................................................................... (555) (15,000) (5,181)
Payments of dividends to minority stockholders ............................................................................. (602) (676) (5,619)
Other ............................................................................................................................................. 17 886 160

Net cash used in financing activities ............................................................................... (35,900) (43,104) (335,105)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ............................................... (361) (173) (3,369)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ...................................................................... 2,202 (6,627) 20,551
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year................................................................... 23,260 30,089 217,124
Effect of adjustment of newly consolidated subsidiaries on cash 
and cash equivalents at beginning of the year .......................................................................... 1,023 (202) 9,551

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ............................................................................. ¥026,485 ¥23,260 $0,247,226

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
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Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF REPORTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in Japan and from the consolidated financial
statements which had been filed with the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.

Certain items have been reclassified for the convenience of read-
ers who are not familiar with Japanese financial reporting practices.

Where appropriate, certain prior-year balances have been reclassi-
fied to conform to the year 2003 presentation.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 include the accounts of the Company and its 42
and 43 significant subsidiaries (collectively “the Companies”).

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, all sig-
nificant intercompany transactions, account balances and unrealized
profits among the Companies are entirely eliminated and the portions
attributable to minority interests are credited or charged to income.

Accounts of subsidiaries whose business year-ends differ by more
than three months from December 31 have been included using
appropriate interim financial information.

The excess of cost over equity in net assets is amortized on a
straight-line basis within a period of 20 years.

(b) Investments in Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates 
The Company applies the equity method of accounting for invest-
ments in 4 non-consolidated subsidiaries and 29 affiliates for the year
ended December 31, 2003 and investments in 5 non-consolidated
subsidiaries and 31 affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2002.

All underlying intercompany profits obtained from transactions
among the Companies and non-consolidated subsidiaries and affili-
ates to which the equity method is applied are eliminated in the con-
solidated financial statements.

The amortization charged to income for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 was nil and ¥27 million, respectively.

(c) Translation of Foreign Currency Accounts
Under the new Japanese Accounting Standards for Foreign Currency
Translation effective April 1, 2000, all receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rates.

The resulting exchange gains or losses are charged to income.
The monetary amounts stated in the financial statements of a cer-

tain consolidated subsidiary of foreign nationality are translated into
Japanese yen at the year-end rate for assets and liabilities, at histori-
cal rates for other balance sheet accounts exclusive of net income,
and at the average annual rate for revenue and expense accounts
and net income.

Under the new standards, translation adjustments resulting from
the process of translating the financial statements of foreign sub-
sidiaries into Japanese yen are accumulated and reported as a com-
ponent of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheet.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits available for

withdrawal on demand and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less and minor risk of value fluctuation.

(e) Securities
Securities to be owned until the due date are stated at cost as deter-
mined by the amortization-cost method.

Under the Japanese Accounting Standards for Financial
Instruments, which have become effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after April 1, 2000, securities are classified into one of the fol-
lowing categories based on the purpose of holding, resulting in the
different measurement and accounting for the changes in fair value.
Debt securities that are intended to be held to maturity (“held-to-
maturity debt securities”) are measured at amortized cost in the bal-
ance sheet. Securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities and
equity investment in subsidiaries and affiliates (“other securities”) are
stated at cost except for certain consolidated subsidiaries.

Beginning with the consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2002,
the Company has applied the accounting standards for financial
instruments contained in the Opinion Regarding the Establishment of
Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments (issued by the Corporate
Accounting Deliberation Council on January 22, 1999) and has restated
the value of other securities with quoted market value at their market
prices prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Other securities without quoted market prices were valued at cost
by the moving-average method.

(f) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
To provide for losses from bad debts, the allowance is provided
according to the actual rate of non-recovery for ordinary claims, and
in view of the probability of recovery for specific doubtful receivables.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are stated mainly at cost as determined by the gross-
average method. Part of the inventories owned by certain sub-
sidiaries is stated at cost as determined by the specific identification
method or by the final purchasing-price method.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment is computed principally by the
straight-line method with the exception that the declining-balance
method is applied to certain factories of the Company and some of
the consolidated subsidiaries.

(i) Deferred Charges and Intangible Assets
The Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries principally
apply the straight-line method to amortize deferred charges and
intangible assets.

( j ) Reserve for Restructuring Expenses
The Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries record
reserve for restructuring expenses on an accrual basis to provide for
expenses and losses resulting from their restructuring programs.

(k) Employees’ Severance Indemnities 
Employees’ severance indemnities are provided based on the esti-
mated retirement benefit obligation and the pension assets. The fig-
ure is based on the amount of severance benefit obligations at the
balance sheet date and the estimated amount of the pension fund.
Transition obligations resulting from the initial adoption of the new
accounting method for employees’ retirement benefits are amortized 
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3. TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLARS
The Companies’ accounting records are maintained in yen. The U.S. dollar amounts appearing in the accompanying financial statements and notes
thereto represent the arithmetical results of translating yen into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥107.13 to US$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange at
December 31, 2003. The inclusion of such U.S. dollar amounts is solely for the convenience of readers; it does not carry with it any implication that
yen amounts have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars at that rate.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 on the consolidated balance sheets and cash equivalents at December 31, 2003 and 2002 on the consoli-
dated statements of cash flows are reconciled as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Cash ........................................................................................................................................................... ¥26,791 ¥23,801 $250,077
Original maturities more than three months.................................................................................................. (306) (541) (2,852)

Cash and cash equivalents.......................................................................................................................... ¥26,485 ¥23,260 $247,226

5. SECURITIES
The following tables summarize acquisition costs, book values and fair values of securities with available fair values as of December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Book value Fair value Difference

No applicable securities

over 15 years, except for a certain consolidated subsidiary in which
the amount is amortized over 5 years.

Prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over certain
periods (mainly 12 years) within the average remaining service periods.

Unrecognized actuarial loss is amortized starting the year after
such actuarial loss is determined on a straight-line basis over certain
periods (mainly 12 years) within the average remaining service peri-
ods. However, a certain consolidated subsidiary recognized such
total actuarial loss as a one-time loss when determined.

The parent company and some of its consolidated subsidiaries
obtained an approval, as of April 23, 2002, from the Ministry of
Health, Labour and Welfare providing for exemption of payment of
future obligations related to the portion of the National Welfare
Pension Fund formerly managed by these companies. Consequently,
the Company has applied the transitional measures specified in
Article 47-2 of the Guidelines for Retirement Payment Accounting
(Interim Report) (Article 13 of the Report of the Accounting Committee
of the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants). Accordingly,
as of the date of the permit, the Company’s obligations for severance
payments related to the portion of pension assets formerly managed
by the Company and the pension assets returned to the government
have been removed from the Company’s accounts. The amount cor-
responding to the portion returned on a consolidated basis as the
end of 2003 was ¥22,607 million (US$211,024 thousand).

(l) Directors’ Retirement Benefits
Some of the consolidated subsidiaries provide for retirement benefits
for directors and statutory auditors in an amount determined by
those companies’ internal guidelines.

(m) Income Taxes
Periodical allocation of corporate tax is being made, in principle,
regarding taxes pertaining to all temporary differences (differences
between the assets/liabilities on the consolidated financial state-
ments and the assets/liabilities in the calculation of taxable income).

(n) Leases
Finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the own-
ership of the leased assets to the lessees are principally accounted for
by the method that is applicable to ordinary operating leases.

(o) Net Income per Share
In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, the Company applied
the Accounting Standards Related to Accounting for Net Income per
Share (Corporate Accounting Standard No. 2) and Guidelines for Applying
Accounting Standards Related to Net Income per Share (Guideline
No. 4 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standards) to calculate
stockholders’ equity per share and fully diluted net income per share.
There was no impact from these changes on net income per share.



Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Book value Fair value Difference

Government bonds ............................................................................................................................................... ¥1 ¥0 ¥(1)

Total.................................................................................................................................................................. ¥1 ¥0 ¥(1)

Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Book value Fair value Difference

No applicable securities

The following tables summarize available-for-sale securities sold in the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ...................................................................................................................................................... ¥4,919 ¥1,000 ¥(27)

Total ................................................................................................................................................................... ¥4,919 ¥1,000 ¥(27)

Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ................................................................................................................................................... ¥11,717 ¥5,176 ¥(18)

Total................................................................................................................................................................. ¥11,717 ¥5,176 ¥(18)

Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ................................................................................................................................................... $45,916 $9,334 $(252)

Total................................................................................................................................................................. $45,916 $9,334 $(252)

The following table summarizes book values of securities with no available fair values as of December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Local bonds ............................................................................................................................................ ¥00,023 ¥       26 $000,215
Private placement corporate bonds ......................................................................................................... 1,001 1,001 9,344

Available-for-sale securities:
Non-listed equity securities...................................................................................................................... 23,142 9,749 216,018
Preferred securities.................................................................................................................................. 1,000 1,000 9,334
Private placement local bonds................................................................................................................. 115 115 1,073

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥25,281 ¥11,891 $235,984

Available-for-sale securities with maturities and held-to-maturity debt securities at December 31, 2003 and 2002 mature as follows (all securities
have a maturity of 10 years or less):
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(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Over one year but Over five years but
Within one year within five years within ten years

Government bonds ...................................................................................................................... ¥3 ¥10 ¥0,010
Corporate bonds ......................................................................................................................... — — 1,000

Total ........................................................................................................................................ ¥3 ¥10 ¥1,010

(b) Other securities
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Book value Fair value Difference

No applicable securities

(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Over one year but Over five years but
Within one year within five years within ten years

Government bonds ...................................................................................................................... ¥3 ¥10 ¥13
Corporate bonds ......................................................................................................................... — — 1

Total ........................................................................................................................................ ¥3 ¥10 ¥14

(b) Other securities
Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Over one year but Over five years but
Within one year within five years within ten years

Corporate bonds........................................................................................................................ ¥— ¥74 ¥—

Total....................................................................................................................................... ¥— ¥74 ¥—

(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over one year but Over five years but
Within one year within five years within ten years

Government bonds .................................................................................................................... $28 $93 $0,093
Corporate bonds........................................................................................................................ — — 9,334

Total....................................................................................................................................... $28 $93 $9,428

b) Other securities
Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Book value Fair value Difference

No applicable securities
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6. EFFECT OF YEAR-END DATE ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The year-end date of 2003, namely, December 31, 2003, was a bank holiday. Although notes receivable and payable on this date were accordingly
settled on January 5, 2004, the Companies accounted for those notes in their financial statements as if they had been settled on that date.

Notes outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 dealt with in the above-mentioned manner were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Notes receivable................................................................................................................................................... ¥1,346 ¥1,915 $12,564
Notes payable ...................................................................................................................................................... 2,350 3,610 21,936
Trade notes discounted by banks......................................................................................................................... 257 166 2,399

7. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the short-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Bank loans, interest 0.58%–3.38%............................................................................................................ ¥117,729 ¥150,506 $1,098,939

Total...................................................................................................................................................... ¥117,729 ¥150,506 $1,098,939

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the long-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

2.3% bonds due 2005 .............................................................................................................................. ¥003,500 ¥003,500 $0,032,671
TIBOR+0.55% bonds due 2005 ................................................................................................................ 10,000 10,000 93,345
TIBOR+0.55% bonds due 2006 ................................................................................................................ 15,000 15,000 140,017
1.85% bonds due 2005 ............................................................................................................................ 2,000 2,000 18,669
1.9% bonds due 2007 .............................................................................................................................. 8,500 8,500 79,343
TIBOR+1.05% bonds due 2008 ................................................................................................................ 3,000 — 28,003
1.7% convertible bonds due 2005, convertible currently at ¥1,058............................................................ 28,884 28,884 269,616
0.7% convertible bonds due 2006, convertible currently at ¥720............................................................... 930 1,485 8,681
0.58%–5.07% loans, principally from banks and insurance companies, due 2004 to 2016 ....................... 337,846 361,254 3,153,604

................................................................................................................................................................ 409,660 430,623 3,823,950
Less: Current portion................................................................................................................................. (73,830) (160,971) (689,167)

................................................................................................................................................................. ¥335,829 ¥269,652 $3,134,782

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term debt and long-term debt:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Assets pledged as collateral
Investment securities............................................................................................................................. ¥006,600 ¥002,073 $0,061,607
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation ............................................................. 250,017 265,705 2,333,781

Total.................................................................................................................................................. ¥256,617 ¥267,778 $2,395,389

Secured short-term debt and long-term debt
Short-term debt .................................................................................................................................... ¥000,669 ¥001,560 $0,006,245
Long-term debt ..................................................................................................................................... 96,138 104,412 897,396
Other debt............................................................................................................................................. 2,567 2,801 23,962

Total.................................................................................................................................................. ¥099,374 ¥108,773 $0,927,602



The aggregate annual maturities of the non-current portion of long-term debt are as follows:
Years ending December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 ............................................................................................................................................................................ ¥086,523 $0,807,645
2006 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 83,507 779,492
2007 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 66,312 618,986
2008 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 21,617 201,783
2009 and thereafter...................................................................................................................................................... 6,056 56,529

.................................................................................................................................................................................... ¥264,015 $2,464,436

8. PENSION AND SEVERANCE PLANS
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had a funded qualified retirement pension plan, a funded welfare pension plan and unfunded benefit
plans on a lump-sum payment basis, all of which were for all employees as their defined benefit system. However, the Company and some of the
consolidated subsidiaries terminated such plans at the end of 2003.

Since the beginning of 2004, they have adopted a new defined benefit plan as well as a defined contribution plan. The rest of the consolidated
subsidiaries still have a funded qualified retirement plan or unfunded benefit plans on a lump-sum basis as their defined benefit system.

The plans’ funded status and amount recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Benefit obligation at the end of year ..................................................................................................... ¥(117,421) ¥(119,588) $(1,096,058)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year ........................................................................................... 51,109 45,450 477,079

Funded status ...................................................................................................................................... (66,311) (74,138) (618,979)
Unrecognized transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting ..................................... 39,455 43,395 368,295
Unrecognized actuarial loss.................................................................................................................. 28,784 23,301 268,687
Unrecognized prior service costs ......................................................................................................... (9,353) — (87,304)

Net amount recognized........................................................................................................................ (7,424) (7,442) (69,302)
Prepaid pension expense ..................................................................................................................... 1,215 1,657 11,346

Employees’ severance indemnities ................................................................................................... ¥00(8,640) ¥00(9,099) $00,(80,648)

The components of net pension and severance costs for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Service cost ................................................................................................................................................ ¥03,344 ¥03,608 $031,214
Interest cost ................................................................................................................................................ 3,485 4,473 32,531
Expected return on planned assets ............................................................................................................. (1,438) (2,034) (13,423)
Amortization of transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting........................................... 3,495 3,599 32,624
Recognized actuarial loss ............................................................................................................................ 2,191 1,142 20,452

Net periodic cost ..................................................................................................................................... ¥11,079 ¥10,787 $103,416
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The assumptions and basis as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2001 2003 2002

Discount rate ............................................................................................................................................... Mainly 2.5% Mainly 3.0%
Expected return rate on planned assets....................................................................................................... Mainly 3.5% Mainly 3.5%
Amortization period for actuarial loss ........................................................................................................... Mainly 12 years Mainly 12 years
Amortization period for unrecognized transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting ......... Mainly 15 years Mainly 15 years

9. INCOME TAXES
At December 31, 2003 and 2002, significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards............................................................................................................................. ¥23,445 ¥23,788 $218,846
Write-down of marketable and investment securities ............................................................................... 5,522 7,594 51,545
Reserve for restructuring expenses.......................................................................................................... 1,686 3,447 15,738
Unrealized earnings from the sale of fixed assets ..................................................................................... 1,642 1,818 15,327
Securities valuation surplus...................................................................................................................... — 1,994 —
Non-deductible expenses:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.......................................................................................................... 1,087 928 10,147
Employees’ severance indemnities ...................................................................................................... 2,786 2,914 26,006
Accrued bonuses ................................................................................................................................ 717 768 6,693
Depreciation ........................................................................................................................................ 610 1,084 5,694

Other....................................................................................................................................................... 1,934 2,507 18,053
Subtotal of deferred tax assets .................................................................................................................... 39,429 46,841 368,048

Valuation allowance ................................................................................................................................. (9,729) (10,375) (90,815)

Total deferred tax assets ..................................................................................................................... 29,701 36,467 277,243

Deferred tax liabilities:
Amount of revaluation from the book value.............................................................................................. (7,056) (7,167) (65,864)
Special depreciation reserve.................................................................................................................... (1,794) (1,624) (16,746)

Securities valuation surplus.................................................................................................................. (1,738) — (16,223)
Other....................................................................................................................................................... (2,083) (1,472) (19,444)

Total deferred tax liabilities................................................................................................................... (12,670) (10,264) (118,268)

Net deferred tax assets ............................................................................................................................... ¥17,030 ¥26,203 $158,966



The net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are included in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Deferred tax assets—current ....................................................................................................................... ¥06,718 ¥07,834 $062,711
Deferred tax assets—non-current................................................................................................................ 16,668 24,410 155,587
Other current liabilities ................................................................................................................................. (3) (46) (28)
Deferred tax liabilities—non-current ............................................................................................................. (6,353) (5,995) (59,301)

On March 31, 2003, the Japanese Diet approved changes in the Local Tax Laws, including a reduction in the standard rate of the enterprise tax,
effective from April 1, 2004. As a result, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities due to land revaluation were decreased by ¥560 million
(US$5,227 thousand) and ¥763 million (US$7,122 thousand), respectively.

On the other hand, revaluation surplus, land revaluation reserve and deferred income taxes were increased by ¥56 million (US$523 thousand),
¥763 million (US$7,122 thousand) and ¥616 million (US$5,750 thousand), respectively.

10. INFORMATION FOR CERTAIN LEASES
At December 31, 2003, assets leased under non-capitalized financial leases were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Machinery and equipment ........................................................................................................................... ¥14,717 ¥14,350 $137,375
Other........................................................................................................................................................... 1,839 1,565 17,166
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ....................................................................................... 8,353 8,137 77,971

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥08,202 ¥07,779 $076,561

At December 31, 2003, future minimum lease payments for the remaining lease periods were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Due within one year .......................................................................................................................................... ¥2,027 ¥2,244 $18,921
Due over one year............................................................................................................................................. 6,175 5,535 57,640

Total ............................................................................................................................................................. ¥8,202 ¥7,779 $76,561

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, paid lease fees and equivalent depreciation expense amounts were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Paid lease fees.................................................................................................................................................. ¥2,388 ¥2,158 $22,291
Equivalent depreciation expense amounts ........................................................................................................ 2,388 2,158 22,291
Note: Equivalent depreciation expense amounts are calculated using the straight-line method, with the lease period as the useful life and zero (0) as the residual value.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, assets leased under non-capitalized operating leases were as follows:

Future minimum lease payments for the remaining lease periods:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Due within one year ................................................................................................................................................ ¥1,732 ¥053 $16,167
Due over one year................................................................................................................................................... 3,842 143 35,863

Total ................................................................................................................................................................... ¥5,574 ¥196 $52,030
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11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2003, the Companies were contingently liable for outstanding trade notes discounted by banks in the ordinary course of business
in an aggregate amount of ¥975 million (US$9,101 thousand).

They were also guarantors for the borrowing below. The guarantees were principally for non-consolidated subsidiaries, affiliates and others.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Guarantee ................................................................................................................................................... ¥19,816 ¥20,323 $184,972

As the amounts include joint and several guarantors’ portions as well as the Companies’, actual amounts we were contingently liable to pay were
smaller than the above.

12. REVALUATION RESERVE
The Company and some of its consolidated subsidiaries revalued the land they own for business in accordance with the Law Concerning
Revaluation of Land. The difference between the revalued amount and the book value, after the deduction of applicable tax, is stated as revaluation
reserve. The revaluation was conducted using methods stipulated in the ordinance for enforcement of the law, specifically, the method in Item 4 of
Article 2 (reasonable adjustment of the appraised value relating to land price tax), and the method in Item 5 of Article 2 (estimation by experts).
Revaluation was performed on December 31, 2000, March 30, 2001 and March 31, 2002. The difference between the market value and the book
value on the revaluated land as of December 31, 2003 was –¥33,648 million (–US$314,086 thousand).

13. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were summarized as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Freight ......................................................................................................................................................... ¥22,150 ¥25,186 $206,758
Employees’ compensation .......................................................................................................................... 19,052 19,327 177,840
Sales commission ....................................................................................................................................... 7,361 6,465 68,711
Other........................................................................................................................................................... 38,428 40,474 358,708

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥86,991 ¥91,452 $812,017

Research and development expenses included in the above for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were ¥15,637 million
(US$145,963 thousand) and ¥14,459 million, respectively.

14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development costs included in the cost of sales and selling, general and administration expenses for the year ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 were ¥16,983 million (US$158,527 thousand) and ¥15,443 million, respectively.

15. SUBSIDY FOR WASTE PLASTIC RECYCLE PLANT
A total of ¥3,737 million (US$34,883 thousand) in subsidies was received from the Japanese government and the City of Kawasaki upon commenc-
ing the operation of a waste plastic recycle system, which was designed mainly to produce ammonia, at the Kawasaki Plant in 2003.

16. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Basic income per share and diluted income per share for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

Yen U.S. dollars

2003 2002 2003

Basic ................................................................................................................................................................ ¥9.07 ¥11.44 $0.085
Diluted .............................................................................................................................................................. — 11.42 —



Net income per share has been computed based on the average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the respective fiscal
year. Fully diluted net income per share additionally assumes the conversion of the convertible bonds. If no dilution effect is recognized or amounts
per share of common stock represent a net loss, fully diluted net income per share shall not be disclosed in accordance with Japanese accounting
regulations.

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company and certain subsidiaries enter into forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity forwards for aluminum metal. The
Company and its subsidiaries have their basic policies to use derivative financial instruments for risk hedging within the limit of hedged receivables and
payables and do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Forward exchange contracts are used to hedge risk arising
from future fluctuations of foreign currency exchange with respect to receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies. 

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge risk arising from future fluctuations of interest rates and reduce interest expenses. Commodity forwards for
aluminum metal are used to hedge risk arising from future fluctuations of commodity market prices with respect to commodity transactions. 

Under the Japanese Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments, which have been effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2000,
the Companies have applied hedge accounting. 

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the derivative financial instruments of the Companies were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2003 2003

Contract Valuation Valuation
amount Fair value gain (loss) gain (loss)

Related to interest rates
Interest rate swaps:

Paying fixed rates and receiving floating rates........................................................................ ¥2,387 ¥(40) ¥(40) $(373)

Millions of yen

2002

Contract Valuation
amount Fair value gain (loss)

Related to interest rates
Interest rate swaps:

Paying fixed rates and receiving floating rates ...................................................................... ¥12,576 ¥(223) ¥(223)
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18. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized by industry segment as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................ ¥235,124 ¥078,232 ¥94,735 ¥050,969 ¥230,306 ¥        — ¥689,366
Inter-segment ........................................................ 1,506 780 432 137 17,506 (20,360) —

Total .................................................................. 236,630 79,011 95,167 51,106 247,812 (20,360) 689,366
Operating costs ..................................................... 224,659 73,022 84,467 48,452 236,165 (15,945) 650,820

Operating income .................................................. ¥011,971 ¥005,989 ¥10,700 ¥002,654 ¥011,647 ¥  (4,415) ¥038,546

Assets ....................................................................... ¥225,387 ¥154,415 ¥84,624 ¥110,436 ¥361,702 ¥03,315 ¥939,879
Depreciation and amortization ................................... 7,151 5,175 6,162 2,797 13,692 (434) 34,543
Capital expenditures .................................................. 5,959 13,208 9,795 2,207 9,823 (144) 40,848

Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................ ¥227,753 ¥068,530 ¥75,248 ¥056,878 ¥245,610 ¥        — ¥674,018
Inter-segment ........................................................ 1,772 1,781 680 595 18,948 (23,775) —

Total .................................................................. 229,524 70,311 75,928 57,472 264,558 (23,775) 674,018
Operating costs ..................................................... 219,569 64,632 69,738 56,103 251,663 (18,991) 642,715

Operating income .................................................. ¥009,955 ¥005,679 ¥06,189 ¥001,369 ¥012,894 ¥  (4,785) ¥031,303

Assets ....................................................................... ¥259,520 ¥148,433 ¥88,221 ¥119,566 ¥370,765 ¥00,038 ¥986,544
Depreciation and amortization ................................... 8,195 4,106 6,720 3,158 15,077 (302) 36,956
Capital expenditures .................................................. 6,302 5,475 4,695 2,327 9,645 — 28,446

Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ....................................... $2,194,754 $0,730,253 $884,299 $0,475,768 $2,149,781 $          — $6,434,855
Inter-segment ............................................... 14,058 7,281 4,032 1,279 163,409 (190,049) —

Total ......................................................... 2,208,812 737,525 888,332 477,047 2,313,190 (190,049) 6,434,855
Operating costs ............................................ 2,097,069 681,620 788,453 452,273 2,204,471 (148,838) 6,075,049

Operating income ......................................... $0,111,743 $0,055,904 $099,879 $00,24,774 $0,108,718 $ (41,212) $0,359,808

Assets .............................................................. $2,103,864 $1,441,380 $789,919 $1,030,860 $3,376,290 $030,944 $8,773,257
Depreciation and amortization........................... 66,751 48,306 57,519 26,108 127,807 (4,051) 322,440
Capital expenditures ......................................... 55,624 123,289 91,431 20,601 91,692 (1,344) 381,294



The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized by geographic area as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥619,320 ¥70,046 ¥       — ¥689,366
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 18,637 3,349 (21,986) —

Total................................................................................................................. 637,957 73,394 (21,986) 689,366
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 597,918 70,160 (17,258) 650,820

Operating income................................................................................................. ¥040,040 ¥03,234 ¥ (4,727) ¥038,546

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥877,921 ¥48,013 ¥13,945 ¥939,879

Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥608,433 ¥65,584 ¥       — ¥674,018
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 28,897 3,384 (32,281) —

Total................................................................................................................. 637,330 68,969 (32,281) 674,018
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 602,985 67,153 (27,423) 642,715
Operating income................................................................................................. ¥034,346 ¥01,816 ¥ (4,858) ¥031,303

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥929,844 ¥45,286 ¥11,414 ¥986,544

Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................ $5,781,014 $653,841 $         — $6,434,855
Inter-segment.................................................................................................... 173,966 31,261 (205,227) —

Total.............................................................................................................. 5,954,980 685,093 (205,227) 6,434,855
Operating costs................................................................................................. 5,581,238 654,905 (161,094) 6,075,049

Operating income.............................................................................................. $0,373,752 $030,188 $ (44,124) $0,359,808

Assets................................................................................................................... $8,194,913 $448,175 $130,169 $8,773,257
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Overseas sales, which represent sales to customers outside of Japan, of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were
summarized by geographic area as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales.......................................................................................................................................... ¥114,943 ¥52,191 ¥167,134
Consolidated net sales .............................................................................................................................. 689,366
Ratio of overseas sales to consolidated net sales ...................................................................................... 16.7% 7.6% 24.2%

Year ended December 31, 2002 Millions of yen

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales............................................................................................................................................ ¥81,550 ¥57,939 ¥139,489
Consolidated net sales................................................................................................................................ 674,018
Ratio of overseas sales to consolidated net sales........................................................................................ 12.1% 8.6% 20.7%

Year ended December 31, 2003 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales .........................................................................................................................................$1,072,930 $487,174 $1,560,105

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) Issue of Convertible Bonds
Based on a resolution at the board of directors’ meeting on March 4, 2004, the Company issued on March 25, 2004 euro-yen-based convertible
bonds due 2009 in the amount of ¥23,000 million. The issue price was 100% of the face value, namely, ¥1 million per bond. There will be no inter-
est payment, and the bond will be redeemed on March 25, 2009 at 100% of the face value. The subscription right is provided for free. When the
right is exercised, an amount equivalent to the bond issue price should be paid in. The right can be exercised between April 26, 2004 and March
11, 2009 at the conversion price of ¥305. Neither collateral nor guarantee was provided for the bond issue. The money raised by the bond issue will
be used to repay debts.

(b) Turning Heisei Polymer into a Fully Owned Subsidiary through a Share Exchange
The Company and its consolidated subsidiary Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd. decided at their respective board of directors’ meetings on March 22, 2004
that Heisei Polymer would become a fully owned subsidiary through a share exchange arrangement. This is intended as a measure to strengthen
the business of Heisei Polymer. For each share of Heisei Polymer’s common stock, 0.41 share of the Company’s common stock will be allocated.
As for the 8,597,208 shares of Heisei Polymer’s common stock owned by the Company, there will be no allocation. There will be no payment of
cash and no increase in the Company’s capital as a result of the share exchange. The Company will follow the “simplified procedure for share
exchange” as provided for in Article 358 of the Commercial Code. Heisei Polymer will hold its regular stockholders’ meeting on June 29, 2004, at
which this share exchange agreement is expected to be approved. The listing of Heisei Polymer shares will be terminated on July 28, 2004 and the
share exchange will take effect on August 3, 2004.
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Name Equity Participation (%) (Note) Main Product or Business

Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd.* 
(T5193, see Note 19, Subsequent Events) 44.4 Plastic cloth, bags, sheeting, etc.

Hymold Co., Ltd. 100.0 Plastic products for electrical appliances
PT. Showa Aluminum Indonesia 90.0 Evaporators for refrigerators
PT. Showa Esterindo Indonesia 67.0 Ethyl acetate
SDS Biotech K.K. 100.0 Agrochemicals
Shoko Co., Ltd.* (T8090) 43.9 General trading
Shotic America Corporation 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Shotic Europa-Industria de Aluminio Lda. 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Shotic (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K. 100.0 Aluminum alloy
Showa Aluminum Can Corporation 75.0 Beer and soft drink cans
Showa Aluminum Corporation of America 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles, aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers
Showa Aluminum Czech S.R.O. 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles
Showa Aluminum Manufacturing 
Philippines Corporation 100.0 Evaporators for refrigerators

Showa Aluminum Powder K.K. 100.0 Aluminum paste
Showa Aluminum (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 97.5 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles
Showa Aluminum Viewtech Co., Ltd. 100.0 Flagstaffs, lightning rods, home exterior products, etc.
Showa Denko Aluminum Trading K.K. 100.0 Aluminum products trading in western Japan
Showa Denko Carbon, Inc. 100.0 Graphite electrodes
Showa Denko Elastomers K.K. 100.0 Polychloroprene rubber
Showa Denko HD K.K. 80.1 Hard disks
Showa Denko HD Singapore Pte. Ltd. 100.0 Hard disks
Showa Denko HD Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 100.0 Aluminum substrates for hard disks
Showa Denko Kenzai K.K. 100.0 Plaster materials, fireproofing pipe, wall siding, etc.
Showa Denko Packaging Co., Ltd. 100.0 Packaging/containers for food, medicine, and electronic parts
Showa Denko Plastic Products Co., Ltd. 100.0 Packaging, plastic parts for OA equipment, etc.
Showa Engineering Co., Ltd. 100.0 Engineering, construction, maintenance
Showa Financing K.K. 100.0 Provision of finance to subsidiaries and affiliates
Showa Highpolymer Co., Ltd.* (T4214) 40.6 Unsaturated polyester, vinyl ester, etc.

SUBSIDIARIES

Name Equity Participation (%) Main Product or Business

Japan Polyethylene Corporation 42.0 High- and low-density polyethylene
Middelburg Technochrome (Pty.) Ltd. 20.7 Low-carbon ferrochrome
Showa Cabot K.K. 50.0 Carbon black
Showa Tansan Co., Ltd.* (T4096) 20.8 Liquid oxygen, nitrogen, argon
Sun Allomer Co., Ltd. 50.0 Polypropylene and advanced polypropylene-based materials
Tokyo Liquefied Oxygen Co., Ltd. 35.0 Liquefied oxygen, nitrogen, argon
Union Showa K.K. 50.0 Molecular sieves

AFFILIATES

*Tokyo Stock Exchange listed companies

As of December 31, 2003, Showa Denko K.K. had 33 subsidiaries or affiliates to which the equity method was applied.

* Tokyo Stock Exchange listed companies

As of December 31, 2003, Showa Denko K.K. had 42 consolidated subsidiaries, including the above.

Note: Proportion of ownership interest (direct or indirect) by SDK and its subsidiaries

MMAJOR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (As of December 31, 2003)
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DIRECTORS, AUDITORS, CORPORATE OFFICERS, AND CHIEF TECHNOLOGISTS
(As of March 30, 2004)

◆PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mitsuo Ohashi
Chairman, Responsible Care Committee

◆REPRESENTATIVE DIRECTOR & SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
Yasumasa Sasaki
Executive Officer, Technology Headquarters; 
Special Advisor to HD Business 

◆SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTORS
Tatsuo Sato
Executive Officer, Aluminum Sector

Kyohei Takahashi
Director in charge of Corporate Strategy Department;  
Chairman, IR Committee 

◆MANAGING DIRECTORS
Tadahiro Hashimoto
Executive Officer, Electronics Sector

Kensuke Onishi
Deputy Executive Officer, Aluminum Sector (concurrently 
President, Showa Aluminum Can Corporation)

Hiroshi Ito
Director in charge of Audit Office; Chief Manager, 
Business Support Center

Norikuni Imoto
Chief Manager, Corporate Relations Center; Chairman, Security
Export Control Committee and Corporate Ethics Committee

Hiroshi Nishimoto
Executive Officer, Petrochemicals Sector

◆DIRECTORS
Tetsuo Tamada
Executive Officer, Inorganic Materials Sector

Norio Masubuchi
Executive Officer, Chemicals Sector

Note: All directors listed above concurrently serve as corporate
officers corresponding to their respective positions.

◆STATUTORY AUDITORS
Naoaki Yokobori
Minoru Kiyono

◆AUDITORS
Takashi Kobayashi
Shogo Itoda

DIRECTORS AND 
STATUTORY AUDITORS

◆SENIOR CORPORATE OFFICER
Koji Kudo
Oita Complex Representative; Plant Manager, Oita Plant

◆CORPORATE OFFICERS
Tatsuo Otsuka
General Manager, Aluminum Specialty Products Division, 
Aluminum Sector

Kenji Katagiri
General Manager, Specialty Chemicals Division, Chemicals Sector

Masayoshi Okamoto
General Manager, Heat Exchanger Division, Aluminum Sector

Toshio Ohi
Deputy Executive Officer, Technology Headquarters; 
Chief Manager, Production Technology Department, Technology
Headquarters; Chairman, Safety Measures Committee

Takumi Ui
General Manager, Shotic Division, Aluminum Sector

Kenji Tsukamoto
General Manager, Extrusion Division, Aluminum Sector

Kouichi Sekiya
General Manager, Gases & Chemicals Division, Chemicals Sector

Hisao Takamatsu
Chief Manager, Corporate Technical Department, 
Technology Headquarters

Ichiro Nomura
Chief Manager, Planning Department, Aluminum Sector

Shinji Sakai
Chief Manager, Planning Department, Electronics Sector

Takashi Miyazaki
General Manager, Olefins Division and Organic Chemicals Division,
Petrochemicals Sector

◆CHIEF TECHNOLOGISTS
Eiji Ogata
Manager, Ogata Laboratory, Corporate R&D Center, 
Technology Headquarters

Yorikatsu Hohokabe
Chief Manager, Intellectual Property Department, 
Technology Headquarters

CORPORATE OFFICERS AND 
CHIEF TECHNOLOGISTS
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CORPORATE DATA

Regular General Meeting
The regular general meeting of stockholders was held on
March 30, 2004.

Number of Shares Outstanding
1,138,100,738 at December 31, 2003

Number of Stockholders
95,070 at December 31, 2003

Classification of Stock
All stock issued by Showa Denko is common stock.

Stock Transfer Agent
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

2-1, Yaesu 1-chome, 
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8670, 
Japan

Stockholders by Sector (At December 31, 2003)

Number of shares 
held (thousands) %

Financial firms 560,417 49.24%

Individuals 325,939 28.63%

Foreign corporate entities, etc. 157,911 13.88%

Japanese corporate entities 82,951 7.29%

Securities firms 10,879 0.96%

Governmental bodies 2 0.00%

Total 1,138,101 100.00%

Head Office
Showa Denko K.K.

13-9, Shiba Daimon 1-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8518, 
Japan
Fax: 3-3436-2625

e-mail: sdk_prir@sdk.co.jp
URL: http://www.sdk.co.jp

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Showa Denko America, Inc.

Head Office
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Fl.,
New York, NY 10017,
U.S.A.
Phone: 212-370-0033
Fax: 212-370-4566

San Francisco Office
1900 S. Norfolk St., Suite 240,
San Mateo, CA 94403,
U.S.A.
Phone: 650-345-1338
Fax: 650-345-5403

Showa Denko Europe GmbH
Martin-Kollar-Str. 10,
D-81829 Munich,
Germany
Phone: 89-93996234
Fax: 89-939962-50

Showa Denko Singapore (Pte.) Ltd.
4 Shenton Way, 
#16-01 SGX Centre 2,
Singapore 068807
Phone: 6223-1889
Fax: 6223-6007

Showa Denko (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
11F-A Zhong Cheng Bld., 
818 Dong Fang Rd., Pudong,
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
Phone: 21-5820-6120
Fax: 21-5820-2034

COMMERCIAL SUBSIDIARIES ABROAD

This annual report is printed on 100% recycled paper.
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